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Part I. Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements.

Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)

(in millions, except par value) June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 753  $ 692 
Accounts receivable, net 1,135  1,023 
Inventories, net 1,259  1,237 
Other current assets 245  220 

Total current assets 3,392  3,172 

Property, plant and equipment, net 426  410 
Goodwill 3,126  3,072 
Intangible assets, net 1,137  1,176 
Other assets 434  369 

Total assets $ 8,515  $ 8,199 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 1,102  $ 1,073 
Accrued liabilities 655  577 
Current obligations payable under the Indemnification Agreement 1,625 140 

Total current liabilities 3,382  1,790 

Long-term debt 1,983  1,983 
Non-current obligations payable under the Indemnification Agreement —  583 
Other liabilities 536  534 

Total liabilities 5,901  4,890 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Stockholders’ equity

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: 100 shares authorized, 0.5 shares issued and outstanding at
June 28, 2025 and December 31, 2024 482  482 
Common stock, $0.001 par value: 700 shares authorized, 156 and 149 shares issued and
outstanding at June 28, 2025, respectively, and 154 and 147 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2024, respectively —  — 
Additional paid-in capital 2,349  2,315 
Retained earnings 71  907 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (161) (284)
Treasury stock at cost (127) (111)

Total stockholders’ equity 2,614  3,309 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 8,515  $ 8,199 

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions, except per share data) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Net revenue $ 1,943  $ 1,589  $ 3,713  $ 3,075 
Cost of goods sold 1,374  1,142  2,633  2,228 

Gross profit 569  447  1,080  847 
Operating expenses:

Research and development expenses 41  21  76  46 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 319  280  625  511 
Intangible asset amortization 30  13  60  22 
Restructuring, impairment and extinguishment costs 2  11  6  18 

Total operating expenses 392  325  767  597 
Income from operations 177  122  313  250 

Indemnification Agreement expense 882  47  972  90 
Other expenses, net 9  1  15  — 
Interest expense, net 24  15  49  28 

Net (loss) income before taxes (738) 59  (723) 132 
Provision for income taxes 87  29  96  59 

Net (loss) income (825) 30  (819) 73 
Less: preferred stock dividends 8  2  17  2 

Net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (833) $ 28  $ (836) $ 71 

(Loss) earnings per common share:
Basic $ (5.59) $ 0.19  $ (5.65) $ 0.49 
Diluted $ (5.59) $ 0.19  $ (5.65) $ 0.48 

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 149 146 148 146
Diluted 149 149 148 148

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Comprehensive (loss) income:

Net (loss) income $ (825) $ 30  $ (819) $ 73 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign exchange translation gain (loss) 88  (12) 129  (43)
Changes in fair value of effective cash flow hedges (3) (4) (6) (5)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 85  (16) 123  (48)

Comprehensive (loss) income $ (740) $ 14  $ (696) $ 25 

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net (loss) income $ (819) $ 73 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 96  52 
Restructuring, impairment and extinguishment costs 6  18 
Stock-based compensation expense 30  29 
Other, net 8  (1)

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquired companies:
Accounts receivable, net (85) (57)
Inventories, net 4  (4)
Other current assets (26) 9 
Accounts payable 8  31 
Accrued liabilities 73  (78)
Obligations payable under the Indemnification Agreement 902  20 
Other, net (62) 2 

Net cash provided by operating activities 135  94 
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired —  (1,334)
Capital expenditures (51) (36)
Other investing activities, net —  6 

Net cash used in investing activities (51) (1,364)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net —  582 
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of issuance costs —  482 
Repayments of long-term debt (2) (6)
Acquisition of treasury shares to cover stock award tax withholding (16) (9)
Preferred stock dividend payments (17) — 
Other financing activities, net 2  3 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (33) 1,052 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 10  (5)
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 61  (223)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 693  637 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period $ 754  $ 414 

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(Unaudited)
Fiscal Quarters

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Treasury Stock

(in millions, except shares in thousands) Shares Amount Shares Amount

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

 Retained
Earnings Shares Amount

Total
Stockholders’

Equity
Balance at March 30, 2025 500  $ 482  148,493  $ —  $ 2,333  $ 904  $ (246) 7,136  $ (126) $ 3,347 

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  (825) —  —  —  (825)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax —  —  —  —  —  —  85  —  —  85 
Common stock issuance, net of shares withheld
for taxes —  —  145  —  —  —  —  44  (1) (1)
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  —  —  16  —  —  —  —  16 
Preferred stock dividend — — — —  —  (8) —  — —  (8)

Balance at June 28, 2025 500  $ 482  148,638  $ —  $ 2,349  $ 71  $ (161) 7,180  $ (127) $ 2,614 

Balance at March 31, 2024 —  $ —  146,013  $ —  $ 2,243  $ 853  $ (226) 5,946  $ (101) $ 2,769 
Net income —  —  —  —  —  30  —  —  —  30 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax —  —  —  —  —  —  (16) —  —  (16)
Preferred stock issuance, net of issuance costs 500  482  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  482 
Common stock issuance, net of shares withheld
for taxes —  —  256  —  1  —  —  87  (2) (1)
Stock-based compensation awards issued for
acquisition of Snap One —  —  —  —  17  —  —  —  —  17 
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  —  —  15  —  —  —  —  15 
Preferred stock dividend —  —  —  —  —  (2) —  —  —  (2)

Balance at June 29, 2024 500  $ 482  146,269  $ —  $ 2,276  $ 881  $ (242) 6,033  $ (103) $ 3,294 

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Fiscal Year to Date Periods

Preferred Stock Common Stock
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Treasury Stock

(in millions, except shares in thousands) Shares Amount Shares Amount

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings Shares Amount

Total
Stockholders’

Equity
Balance at January 1, 2025 500  $ 482  147,230  $ —  $ 2,315  $ 907  $ (284) 6,436  $ (111) $ 3,309 

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  (819) —  —  —  (819)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax —  —  —  —  —  —  123  —  —  123 
Common stock issuance, net of shares withheld
for taxes —  —  1,408  —  2  —  —  744  (16) (14)
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  —  —  32  —  —  —  —  32 
Preferred stock dividend —  —  —  —  —  (17) —  —  —  (17)

Balance at June 28, 2025 500  $ 482  148,638  $ —  $ 2,349  $ 71  $ (161) 7,180  $ (127) $ 2,614 

Balance at January 1, 2024 —  $ —  145,389  $ —  $ 2,226  $ 810  $ (194) 5,536  $ (93) $ 2,749 
Net income —  —  —  —  —  73  —  —  —  73 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax —  —  —  —  —  —  (48) —  —  (48)
Preferred stock issuance, net of issuance costs 500  482  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  482 
Common stock issuance, net of shares withheld
for taxes —  —  955  —  4  —  —  422  (9) (5)
Stock-based compensation awards issued for
acquisition of Snap One — — — — 17  — — — — 17 
Stock-based compensation expense —  —  —  —  29  —  —  —  —  29 
Preferred stock dividend —  —  —  —  —  (2) —  —  —  (2)
Common stock repurchases —  —  (75) —  —  —  —  75  (1) (1)

Balance at June 29, 2024 500  $ 482  146,269  $ —  $ 2,276  $ 881  $ (242) 6,033  $ (103) $ 3,294 

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Operations

Resideo Technologies, Inc. (“Resideo”, the “Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our”) is a global manufacturer, developer, and distributor of technology-driven sensing
and controls products and solutions that help homeowners and businesses stay connected and in control of their comfort, security, energy use, and smart living.
We are a leader in key product markets including home heating, ventilation, and air conditioning controls; smoke and carbon monoxide detection home safety
and fire suppression products; and security. Our global footprint serves residential and commercial end-markets. Our solutions and services can be found in
over 150 million residential and commercial spaces globally, with tens of millions of new devices sold annually.

Basis of Consolidation and Reporting

The accompanying Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with United States (“U.S.”) generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, the Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements do not include all of the information and notes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of
management, the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included herein contain all adjustments, which consist of normal recurring adjustments,
necessary to fairly present our financial position, results of operations, and cash flows for the periods indicated. For the purpose of comparability, certain prior
period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current period classification.

For additional information, refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December  31, 2024 (the “2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K”), filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on
February 20, 2025.

Reporting Period

We report financial information on a fiscal quarter basis using a modified four-four-five week calendar. Our fiscal calendar begins on January 1 and ends on
December 31. We have elected the first, second, and third quarters to end on a Saturday in order to not disrupt business processes. The effects of this election
are generally not significant to reported results for any quarter and only exist within a reporting year.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are detailed in Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K. There have
been no significant changes to these policies that have had a material impact on the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying
disclosure notes for the six months ended June 28, 2025.

We consider the applicability and impact of all recent accounting standards updates (“ASUs”) issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”).
ASUs not listed below were assessed and determined to be either not applicable or are expected to have an immaterial impact.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income—Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic
220-40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses. This ASU requires entities to disaggregate operating expenses into specific categories, such as
purchases of inventory, employee compensation, depreciation, and amortization to provide enhanced transparency into the nature and function of expenses. The
guidance is effective for annual reporting years beginning after December 15, 2026 and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027. We are
currently assessing the impact of adoption to our Consolidated Financial Statements and related disclosures.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which includes amendments that
further enhance income tax disclosures, primarily through standardization and disaggregation of rate reconciliation categories and income taxes paid by
jurisdiction. ASU 2023-09 is effective for our

9
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

fiscal year ending December 31, 2025. The amendments may be applied prospectively or retrospectively. Other than the new disclosure requirements, the
adoption of this guidance will not impact our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note 3. Acquisitions

On June 14, 2024, we acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding equity of Snap One Holdings Corp. (“Snap One”), a leading provider of smart-living
products, services, and software to professional integrators, for an aggregate purchase price of $1.4 billion.

During the six months ended June 28, 2025, measurement period adjustments were made to income tax assets and liabilities within the one-year measurement
period. As a result, goodwill related to the acquisition decreased by $9 million, reflecting a net decrease in income tax liabilities. We completed accounting for
the acquisition of Snap One in June 2025, and the following table presents the final fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of
acquisition.

(in millions)
Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 47 
Accounts receivable 49 
Inventories 240 
Other current assets 26 
Property, plant and equipment 63 
Goodwill 396 
Intangible assets 770 
Other assets 69 

Total assets acquired 1,660 
Liabilities assumed:

Accounts payable 48 
Accrued liabilities 69 
Other liabilities 138 

Total liabilities assumed 255 
Net assets acquired $ 1,405 

Of the $396 million of goodwill from the acquisition, $90 million is expected to be tax deductible. Goodwill is comprised of expected synergies for the combined operations and the assembled
workforce acquired in the acquisition.

 Includes $68 million of deferred tax liabilities.

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

On a pro forma basis, assuming the acquisition occurred at the beginning of 2023, Resideo’s net revenue for the three and six months ended June 29, 2024,
would have been $1,804 million and $3,536 million, respectively. Snap One’s contribution to unaudited pro forma operating income is not materially different
on a pro forma basis than the amounts reported for both periods. The pro forma results are presented for informational purposes only and are not necessarily
indicative of what the actual results of operations of the combined company would have been if the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2023, nor are they
indicative of future results of operations.

Note 4. Segment Financial Data

We monitor our operations through two reportable segments: Products and Solutions and ADI Global Distribution, with Corporate reported separately. We
identified these segments because we have organized our business and reporting structure into Products and Solutions and ADI Global Distribution. Segment
information is evaluated by our Chief Executive Officer who is also the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). The CODM uses income from operations
to evaluate the performance of the overall business, make investing decisions, and allocate resources predominantly in the annual budget and forecasting
process and the monthly results review, which includes variance analysis against the

(1)

(2)

(1) 

(2)
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

forecast, the budget, and the prior year. Disaggregated assets by segment are not used to allocate resources or to assess performance of the segments and
therefore, segment assets have not been disclosed. Capital expenditures for each segment are reviewed by the CODM. The accounting policies used to derive
segment results are substantially the same as those used in preparing the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Products and Solutions—Our Products and Solutions segment is a leading building products manufacturer focused on residential controls and sensing
solutions. Our products and solutions for comfort, energy management, safety, and security benefit from trusted, well-established branded offerings such as
Honeywell Home, First Alert, Resideo, Braukmann, BRK, and others. Our offerings include temperature and humidity control, water and air solutions, smoke
and carbon monoxide detection home safety products, residential and small business security products, video cameras, other home-related lifestyle convenience
solutions, cloud infrastructure, installation and maintenance tools, and related software. We also sell components to manufacturers of water heaters, heat
pumps, and boilers.

ADI Global Distribution—Our ADI Global Distribution segment is the leading global wholesale distributor of low-voltage products, including security and
audio-visual solutions. With a portfolio of over 500,000 professionally installed products, ADI Global Distribution serves both the commercial and residential
markets across key specialty categories including security, fire, audio-visual, access control, smart living, and data communications. This extensive offering is
complemented by an expanding suite of proprietary technologies and services, under key exclusive brands such as Control4, OvrC, Araknis Networks, and
WattBox.

Corporate—Corporate expenses include costs related to the corporate functions such as the executive function, legal, accounting, tax, treasury, corporate
development, human resources, investor relations, and information technology. Additionally, unallocated amounts for restructuring, impairment and
extinguishment costs and non-operating items such as, Indemnification Agreement expense, interest income (expense), other income (expense), and provision
for income taxes are reported within Corporate.

Segment results of operations for Products and Solutions, including significant segment expenses that are regularly reviewed by the CODM, are included in the
table below.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Net revenue $ 666  $ 630  $ 1,315  $ 1,250 
Cost of goods sold 380  370  760  745 
Research and development expenses 32  21  59  46 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 104  103  205  200 
Intangible asset amortization 6  6  12  12 
Restructuring expenses 2  —  1  5 

Segment income from operations $ 142  $ 130  $ 278  $ 242 

Segment results of operations for ADI Global Distribution, including significant segment expenses that are regularly reviewed by the CODM, are included in
the table below.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Net revenue $ 1,277  $ 959  $ 2,398  $ 1,825 
Cost of goods sold 994  773  1,873  1,483 
Research and development expenses 9  —  17  — 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 179  118  352  220 
Intangible asset amortization 23  6  46  9 
Restructuring expenses 1  —  5  2 

Segment income from operations $ 71  $ 62  $ 105  $ 111 

11



Table of Contents

Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

The following table provides a reconciliation of segment income from operations to consolidated (loss) income before taxes.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Segment income from operations
Products and Solutions $ 142  $ 130  $ 278  $ 242 
ADI Global Distribution 71  62  105  111 

Total segment income from operations 213  192  383  353 
Unallocated amounts:
Selling, general and administrative expenses 36  59  68  91 
Restructuring, impairment and extinguishment costs (1) 11  —  11 
Indemnification Agreement expense 882  47  972  90 
Other expenses, net 9  1  15  — 
Interest expense, net 24  15  49  28 
Other corporate items 1  —  2  1 

Net (loss) income before taxes $ (738) $ 59  $ (723) $ 132 

The following table provides detail on other significant segment items that are regularly reviewed by the CODM.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Capital expenditures
Products and Solutions $ 10  $ 11  $ 30  $ 27 
ADI Global Distribution 10  4  21  9 

Total capital expenditures $ 20  $ 15  $ 51  $ 36 

Note 5. Revenue Recognition

We have two operating segments: Products and Solutions and ADI Global Distribution. Disaggregated revenue information for Products and Solutions is
presented by product grouping, while ADI Global Distribution is presented by region.

12
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

The following table presents revenue by business line and geographic location, as we believe this presentation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of net revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Products and Solutions

Safety and Security $ 241  $ 227  $ 462  $ 440 
Air 220  214  431  405 
Energy 131  118  270  252 
Water 74  71  152  153 

Total Products and Solutions 666  630  1,315  1,250 

ADI Global Distribution
Americas 1,133  840  2,119  1,586 
International 144  119  279  239 

Total ADI Global Distribution 1,277  959  2,398  1,825 

Total net revenue $ 1,943  $ 1,589  $ 3,713  $ 3,075 

Americas represents North, Central, and South America.
International represents all geographies that are not included in Americas.

Note 6. Restructuring

During the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, we incurred restructuring expenses of $2 million and $6 million, respectively. During the three and six
months ended June 29, 2024, we incurred no restructuring expenses and $7 million of restructuring expenses, respectively. In addition, during the three and six
months ended June 29, 2024, we incurred $11 million of impairment and extinguishment costs. These costs are presented in restructuring, impairment and
extinguishment costs within the Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We took restructuring actions, including capturing synergies from our recent acquisition, to align our cost structure based on our strategic objectives and our
outlook of market conditions. The intent of these actions is to lower costs, increase margins, and position us for long-term growth. We expect to fully execute
on our restructuring programs over the next 12 to 30 months, and we may incur future additional restructuring expenses associated with these plans or new
plans. At this time, we are unable to make a good faith determination of cost estimates, or ranges of cost estimates, associated with future phases of the
programs or the total costs we may incur in connection with these programs.

The following table summarizes the status of our restructuring expenses included within accrued liabilities on the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Amounts associated with impairment and extinguishment costs are not included in the table below because those amounts are charged directly against the
relevant assets and debt, respectively.

Six Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Beginning of period $ 31  $ 30 

Charges 6  41 
Usage (14) (40)

End of period $ 23  $ 31 

 Usage primarily relates to cash payments and shares issued associated with employee termination costs.

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(1)
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Note 7. Stockholders’ Equity

Share Repurchase Program

On August 3, 2023, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program for the repurchase of up to $150 million of our common
stock over an unlimited time period (the “Share Repurchase Program”). During the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, there were no common share
repurchases. During the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, we repurchased no and 0.1 million shares of common stock, respectively, in the open
market at a total cost of $1 million. Common stock repurchases are recorded at cost and presented as a reduction to stockholders’ equity. As of June 28, 2025,
we had approximately $108 million of authorized repurchases remaining under the Share Repurchase Program.

Preferred Stock

On June 14, 2024, in connection with our acquisition of Snap One, we issued 500,000 shares of Series A Cumulative Convertible Participating Preferred Stock
(“Preferred Stock”) to CD&R Channel Holdings, L.P. (the “CD&R Stockholder”) for an aggregate purchase price of $500 million pursuant to an investment
agreement dated April 15, 2024. In connection with the issuance of the Preferred Stock, we incurred direct and incremental expenses of $18 million which
reduce the Preferred Stock carrying value.

The Preferred Stock is convertible perpetual participating preferred stock with an initial conversion price equal to $26.92, and accrues dividends at a rate of 7%
per annum, payable in cash or in kind. The Preferred Stock votes on an as-converted basis together with common stockholders. The Preferred Stock had an
aggregate liquidation preference of $500 million as of June 28, 2025. Preferred Stock dividends accumulated during the three and six months ended June 28,
2025, were $8 million and $17 million, respectively.

The Preferred Stock can be converted into our common stock at the holder’s option at any time. We can also force conversion of all (but not less than all) of the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock if at any time our common stock trading price exceeds 200% of the then-effective conversion price for at least 20 out of
30 trailing trading days. Following the third anniversary of the closing date, we have the option to redeem the Preferred Stock for an aggregate redemption
price equal to two times the sum of the Accumulated Amount (as defined in the Certificate of Designations) plus any interim accrued and unpaid dividends
(calculated at 1X instead of 2X) on such share of Preferred Stock in effect at the time of redemption. In the event of a change of control, we will have the
option to purchase all (but not less than all) of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock at a price per share equal to 150% of the sum of the Accumulated
Amount plus any interim accrued and unpaid dividends (calculated at 100% instead of 150%) on such share of Preferred Stock in effect at the time of such
purchase.

Note 8. Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes awards granted during the relevant periods:

Six Months Ended June 28, 2025 Six Months Ended June 29, 2024

(in thousands except for per share amounts)
Number of Stock

Units Granted
Weighted average grant
date fair value per share

Number of Stock
Units Granted 

Weighted average grant
date fair value per share

Performance Stock Units (“PSUs”) 237 $ 25.56  575 $ 27.96 
Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) 1,634 $ 21.22  3,898 $ 19.57 

 Includes 2 million RSUs granted as part of the Snap One acquisition for a fair value of $43 million, of which $17 million was included in purchase consideration.
Includes PSUs at target payout. Final common shares issued may be different based upon the actual achievement versus the performance measure target.

For the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, stock-based compensation expense, net of tax was $16 million and $32 million, respectively. For the three
and six months ended June 29, 2024, stock-based compensation expense, net of tax was $15 million and $29 million, respectively.

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2) 
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Note 9. Inventories, net

The following table summarizes the details of our inventories, net:

(in millions) June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Raw materials $ 167  $ 171 
Work in process 16  14 
Finished products 1,076  1,052 

Total inventories, net $ 1,259  $ 1,237 

Note 10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, net

Our goodwill balance and changes in carrying value by segment were as follows:

(in millions)
Products and

Solutions
ADI Global
Distribution Total

Balance as of January 1, 2025 $ 2,015  $ 1,057  $ 3,072 
Adjustments —  (9) (9)
Impact of foreign currency translation 41  22  63 

Balance as of June 28, 2025 $ 2,056  $ 1,070  $ 3,126 

 Related to the measurement period adjustments associated with the Snap One acquisition. Refer to Note 3. Acquisitions for further discussion.

The following table summarizes the net carrying amount of intangible assets:

(in millions) June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Intangible assets subject to amortization $ 957  $ 996 
Indefinite-lived intangible assets 180  180 

Total intangible assets $ 1,137  $ 1,176 

Intangible assets subject to amortization consisted of the following:

June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024

(in millions)

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Customer relationships $ 916  $ (223) $ 693  $ 901  $ (177) $ 724 
Patents and technology 171  (53) 118  170  (41) 129 
Software 241  (158) 83  222  (145) 77 
Trademarks 79  (16) 63  78  (12) 66 

Intangible assets subject to
amortization $ 1,407  $ (450) $ 957  $ 1,371  $ (375) $ 996 

Intangible assets amortization expense was $30 million and $60 million for the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, respectively, and $13 million and
$22 million for the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, respectively.

(1)

(1)
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Note 11. Leases

Total operating lease costs are as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Operating lease costs:

Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 19  $ 15  $ 39  $ 29 
Cost of goods sold 6  3  10  8 

Total operating lease costs $ 25  $ 18  $ 49  $ 37 
 Includes variable lease costs of $4 million and $9 million for the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, respectively, and $4 million and $7 million for the three and six months ended June 29,
2024, respectively.

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts of our operating lease assets and liabilities:

(in millions) Financial Statement Line Item June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Operating lease assets Other assets $ 269  $ 248 
Operating lease liabilities - current Accrued liabilities $ 52  $ 51 
Operating lease liabilities - non-current Other liabilities $ 232  $ 212 

Supplemental cash flow information related to operating leases follows:

Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Cash paid for operating lease liabilities $ 25  $ 17 
Non-cash activities: operating lease assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 42  $ 6 

As of June 28, 2025, we had entered into multiple lease agreements primarily for distribution centers and branches. These leases were not recognized on our
Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheet as we had not yet taken control of the related leased sites. Upon commencement, we will recognize the related right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities. Total undiscounted future lease payments for these leases was $77 million.

Note 12. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

(in millions) June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
4.000% Senior Notes due 2029 $ 300  $ 300 
6.500% Senior Notes due 2032 600  600 
Variable rate A&R Term B Facility 1,113  1,115 

Gross debt 2,013  2,015 
Less: current portion of long-term debt (8) (6)
Less: unamortized deferred financing costs (22) (26)

Total long-term debt $ 1,983  $ 1,983 

 Included within accrued liabilities on the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Cash paid for interest, net of interest rate derivative receipts was $14 million and $53 million for three and six months ended June 28, 2025, respectively, and
$16 million and $38 million for the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, respectively.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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A&R Senior Credit Facilities

In 2021, we entered into the A&R Credit Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as administrative agent, which was most recently amended in December
2024 (the “A&R Credit Agreement”). The A&R Credit Agreement provides a variable secured term B loan facility (the “A&R Term B Facility”) that bears
interest by reference to the term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“Term SOFR”) plus a 1.75% interest rate margin. The A&R Term B Facility includes $518
million of principal maturing in February 2028, with any remaining balance due in May 2031. The A&R Credit Agreement also includes a senior secured
revolving credit facility (the “A&R Revolving Credit Facility” and, together with the A&R Term B Facility, the “A&R Senior Credit Facilities”) with an
aggregate capacity of $500 million and a five-year term ending in May 2031. At June 28, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the weighted average interest rate for
the A&R Term B Facility, excluding the effect of the interest rate swaps, was 6.06% and 6.13%, respectively, and there were no borrowings and no letters of
credit issued under the A&R Revolving Credit Facility.

We have entered into certain interest rate swap agreements based on Term SOFR which effectively convert a portion of our variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt.
Additionally, we assumed an interest rate cap in 2024 which effectively caps the interest on a portion of our variable rate debt. Refer to Note 13. Derivative
Financial Instruments for further discussion.

Senior Notes

In August 2021, we issued $300 million in principal amount of 4.000% Senior Notes due 2029 (“Senior Notes due 2029”).

In July 2024, we issued $600 million in aggregate principal of 6.500% Senior Notes due 2032 (“Senior Notes due 2032”).

The Senior Notes due 2029 and Senior Notes due 2032 are senior unsecured obligations of Resideo guaranteed by Resideo’s existing and future domestic
subsidiaries and rank equally with all of Resideo’s senior unsecured debt and senior to all of Resideo’s subordinated debt.

Refer to Note 11. Long-Term Debt in our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K and to Note 19. Subsequent Events for further discussion.

Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments

In March 2021, we entered into eight interest rate swap agreements (“Swap Agreements”), each with a notional value of $70 million, for a combined notional
value of $560 million. The Swap Agreements were entered into to reduce the consolidated interest rate risk associated with variable rate long-term debt and
designated as cash flow hedges. Two of the Swap Agreements matured in February 2025, two matured in May 2025, two are scheduled to mature in February
2026, and two are scheduled to mature in February 2027. As of June 28, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Swap Agreements had a combined notional value of
$280 million and $560 million, respectively. The remaining Swap Agreements effectively convert a portion of our variable interest rate obligations to a rate
based on Term SOFR with a minimum rate of 0.39% per annum to a base fixed weighted average rate of 1.57% over the remaining terms.

In 2024, we assumed an interest rate cap which has a current notional value of $344  million and a strike rate of 4.79% (the “Interest Rate Cap”), which
effectively caps SOFR on the notional amount at that rate. The Interest Rate Cap is designated as a cash flow hedge on our variable interest rate obligations. We
are required to pay a premium of $7 million at the maturity date of December 31, 2025.

The Swap Agreements and Interest Rate Cap (referred to collectively as “interest rate derivatives”) are adjusted to fair value on a quarterly basis. The following
tables summarize the fair value and presentation of derivative instruments in the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets as well as the changes in fair value
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
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Fair Value of Derivative Assets
(in millions) Financial Statement Line Item June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate derivatives Other current assets $ 5  $ 10 
Interest rate derivatives Other assets 1  3 

Total derivative assets designated as hedging instruments $ 6  $ 13 

Fair Value of Derivative Liabilities
(in millions) Financial Statement Line Item June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate derivatives Accrued liabilities $ 6  $ 6 

Unrealized gain Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ 2  $ 8 

The following table summarizes the effect of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges on other comprehensive (loss) income and the Unaudited
Consolidated Statements of Operations:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Gains recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss, beginning of
period $ 5  $ 24  $ 8  $ 25 

Current period gain recognized in/reclassified from other
comprehensive income (3) (4) (7) (3)
Gains reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to net
income/loss —  —  1  (2)

Gains recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss, end of period $ 2  $ 20  $ 2  $ 20 

Unrealized gains expected to be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss in the next 12 months are estimated to be $2 million as of June 28,
2025.

Refer to Note 12. Derivative Financial Instruments in our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion.

Note 14. Fair Value

The estimated fair value of our financial instruments held, and when applicable, issued to finance our operations, is summarized below. Certain estimates and
judgments are required to develop fair value amounts. The fair value amounts shown below are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that we would realize
upon disposition, nor do they indicate our intent or ability to dispose of the financial instrument. There were no material changes in the methodologies used in
our valuation practices as of June 28, 2025.

The fair values of long-term debt instruments were determined using quoted market prices in inactive markets or discounted cash flows based upon current
observable market interest rates and therefore were classified as Level 2 measurements in the fair value hierarchy.
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The following table provides a summary of the carrying amount and fair value of outstanding debt:

June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
(in millions) Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Debt

4.000% Senior Notes due 2029 $ 300  $ 283  $ 300  $ 272 
6.500% Senior Notes due 2032 600  614  600  602 
Variable rate A&R Term B Facility 1,113  1,117  1,115  1,119 

Total debt $ 2,013  $ 2,014  $ 2,015  $ 1,993 

Refer to Note 12. Long-Term Debt for further discussion.

Foreign Currency Risk Management—We conduct business on a multinational basis in a wide variety of foreign currencies. We are exposed to market risks
from changes in currency exchange rates. These exposures may impact future earnings and/or operating cash flows. The exposure to market risk for changes in
foreign currency exchange rates arises from international trade transactions, foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities, and international
financing activities between subsidiaries. We rely on natural offsets to mitigate these market risk exposures. As of June 28, 2025 and December 31, 2024, we
had no foreign currency forward or option hedging contracts.

Interest Rate Risk—We have exposure to movements in interest rates associated with cash and borrowings. We may enter into various interest rate protection
agreements in order to limit the impact of movements in interest rates.

The following table provides a summary of the carrying amount and fair value of our interest rate derivatives:

June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
(in millions) Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Assets:

Interest rate derivatives $ 6  $ 6  $ 13  $ 13 
Liabilities:

Interest rate derivatives $ 6  $ 6  $ 6  $ 6 

There are no material Level 1 or Level 3 assets or liabilities for the periods presented above. The fair values of derivative financial instruments have been
determined based on market value equivalents at the balance sheet date, taking into account the current interest rate environment and therefore were classified
as Level 2 measurements in the fair value hierarchy. Refer to Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments for further discussion.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and current obligations
payable under the Indemnification Agreement approximate fair value because of their short-term maturity.
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Note 15. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

(in millions) June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Taxes payable $ 154  $ 35 
Compensation, benefit and other employee-related 109  131 
Customer rebate reserve 101  112 
Other 291  299 

Total accrued liabilities $ 655  $ 577 

Other includes accruals for current operating lease liability, deferred revenue, freight payable, product warranties, restructuring, interest, legal and professional reserves, advertising, current portion
of long-term debt, royalties, and other miscellaneous items.

Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various federal, state, local, and foreign government requirements relating to the protection of the environment and accrue costs related to
environmental matters when it is probable that we have incurred a liability related to a contaminated site and the amount can be reasonably estimated. We
believe that, as a general matter, our policies, practices, and procedures are properly designed to prevent unreasonable risk of environmental damage and
personal injury and that our handling, manufacture, use, and disposal of hazardous substances are in accordance with environmental and safety laws and
regulations. We have incurred remedial response and voluntary cleanup costs for site contamination. Additional claims and costs involving environmental
matters are likely to continue to arise in the future.

Environmental expenses for sites owned and operated by us are presented within cost of goods sold for operating sites. For the three and six months ended
June  28, 2025 and June  29, 2024, environmental expenses related to these operating sites were not material. Liabilities for environmental costs were
$22 million at June 28, 2025 and December 31, 2024.

Obligations Payable Under the Indemnification Agreement and Tax Matters Agreement

The Indemnification Agreement and the Tax Matters Agreement are further described below.

Indemnification Agreement

We separated from Honeywell International Inc. (“Honeywell”) on October 29, 2018, becoming an independent publicly traded company as a result of a pro
rata distribution of our common stock to shareholders of Honeywell (the “Spin-Off”). In connection with the Spin-Off, we entered into an indemnification and
reimbursement agreement, pursuant to which we have an obligation to make cash payments to Honeywell in amounts equal to 90% of payments for certain
Honeywell environmental-liability payments (the “Indemnification Agreement”, formerly defined as the “Reimbursement Agreement”), which include amounts
billed (payments), less 90% of Honeywell’s net insurance receipts relating to such liabilities, and less 90% of the net proceeds received by Honeywell in
connection with (i) affirmative claims relating to such liabilities, (ii) contributions by other parties relating to such liabilities and (iii) certain property sales (the
recoveries). Pursuant to its terms, the Indemnification Agreement extends until the earlier of (1) December 31, 2043; or (2) December 31 of the third
consecutive anniversary where the annual reimbursement obligation (including accrued amounts) has been less than $25 million. Prior to entering into the
Termination Agreement noted below, the amount payable by us in respect of such liabilities arising in any given year was subject to a cap of $140 million under
the Indemnification Agreement, and historically the estimated liability for resolution of pending and future environmental-related liabilities recorded on our
balance sheets was calculated as if we were responsible for 100% of the environmental-liability payments associated with certain sites. Refer to Note 15.
Commitments and Contingencies in our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion.

On July 30, 2025, we entered into a definitive agreement with Honeywell to terminate the Indemnification Agreement (the “Termination Agreement”). Subject
to the terms and conditions of the Termination Agreement, we will make a pre-tax,

(1)

(1) 
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one-time cash payment of $1,590 million to Honeywell, which is expected to occur in the third quarter of 2025. In addition, we paid our regularly scheduled
payment of $35 million in July 2025. Upon completion of the pre-tax, one-time cash payment, the Indemnification Agreement will be fully terminated, we will
no longer be required to make any further payments to Honeywell under the Indemnification Agreement, and the associated affirmative and negative covenants
will no longer apply. As of June 28, 2025, we updated our assessment of what was probable and reasonably estimable under Accounting Standards Codification
450, Contingencies, based on the agreed payment amount. The liability of $1,625 million is recorded as current obligations payable under the Indemnification
Agreement in the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June  28, 2025. During the three and six months ended June  28, 2025, we incurred
Indemnification Agreement expense of $882  million and $972  million, respectively. In connection with the execution of the Termination Agreement, we
entered into a commitment letter with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank. (the “Debt Commitment Letter”), to provide a new senior secured
term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to $1,225 million (the “New Term Loan Facility”). The proceeds from the New Term Loan Facility,
along with a portion of our cash on hand, will be used to fund the Termination Agreement payment. To the extent that we are not able to raise the necessary
financing by August 29, 2025, Honeywell may cancel the Termination Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification Agreement. In the event we do not raise the
necessary financing by October 30, 2025, we also have the right to cancel the Termination Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification Agreement. Upon
termination by either party, we will owe Honeywell $100 million in liquidated damages. Refer to Note 19. Subsequent Events for further discussion.

Tax Matters Agreement

In connection with the Spin-Off, we entered into the Tax Matters Agreement with Honeywell, pursuant to which we are responsible and will indemnify
Honeywell for certain taxes, including certain income taxes, sales taxes, VAT, and payroll taxes, relating to the business for all periods, including periods prior
to the consummation of the Spin-Off. In addition, the Tax Matters Agreement addresses the allocation of liability for taxes that are incurred as a result of
restructuring activities undertaken to effectuate the Spin-Off.

We are required to indemnify Honeywell for any taxes resulting from the failure of the Spin-Off and related internal transactions to qualify for their intended
tax treatment under U.S. federal, state, and local income tax law, as well as foreign tax law, where such taxes result from our action or omission not permitted
by the Separation and Distribution Agreement between Honeywell and Resideo dated as of October 19, 2018 or the Tax Matters Agreement.

The following table summarizes information concerning the Indemnification Agreement and Tax Matter Agreement liabilities:

(in millions)
Indemnification

Agreement
Tax Matters
Agreement Total

Balance as of January 1, 2025 $ 723  $ 91  $ 814 
Accruals for liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable 972  —  972 
Payments to Honeywell (70) —  (70)

Balance as of June 28, 2025 $ 1,625  $ 91  $ 1,716 

The liabilities related to the Indemnification Agreement and Tax Matters Agreement are included in the following balance sheet accounts:

(in millions) June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Current obligations payable under the Indemnification Agreement $ 1,625  $ 140 
Non-current obligations payable under the Indemnification Agreement —  583 
Other liabilities 91  91 

Total indemnification liabilities $ 1,716  $ 814 

During the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, we incurred Indemnification Agreement expense of $882 million and $972 million, respectively. During
the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, we incurred Indemnification Agreement expense of $47 million and $90 million, respectively. Expenses related
to the Indemnification Agreement are
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presented within Indemnification Agreement expense in the Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations. For the three and six months ended June 28,
2025, and June  29, 2024, respectively, there were no expenses related to the Tax Matters Agreement. Expenses related to the Tax Matters Agreement are
recognized within Other expenses, net in the Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Other Matters

We are subject to lawsuits, investigations, and disputes arising out of the conduct of our business, including matters relating to commercial transactions,
government contracts, product liability, acquisitions and divestitures, employee matters, intellectual property, and environmental, health, and safety matters. We
recognize a liability for any contingency that is probable of occurrence and reasonably estimable. We continually assess the likelihood of adverse judgments or
outcomes in these matters, as well as potential ranges of possible losses, based on a careful analysis of each matter with the assistance of outside legal counsel
and, if applicable, other experts. No such matters are material to our financial statements as of June 28, 2025.

Warranties and Guarantees

In the normal course of business, we issue product warranties and product performance guarantees. We accrue for the estimated cost of product warranties and
product performance guarantees based on contract terms and historical experience at the time of sale. Adjustments to initial obligations for warranties and
guarantees are made as changes to the obligations become reasonably estimable. Product warranties and product performance guarantees are included in
accrued liabilities and other liabilities in the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets. The following table summarizes information concerning recorded
obligations for product warranties and product performance guarantees:

(in millions) June 28, 2025 December 31, 2024
Beginning balance $ 35  $ 34 

Accruals for warranties/guarantees issued during the year 15  31 
Settlement/adjustment of warranty/guarantee claims (14) (30)

Ending balance $ 36  $ 35 

Note 17. Income Taxes

For interim periods, income tax is equal to the total of (1) year-to-date pretax income multiplied by the forecasted effective tax rate plus (2) tax expense items
specific to the period. In situations where we expect to report losses and where we do not expect to receive tax benefits, we apply separate forecast effective tax
rates to those jurisdictions rather than including them in the consolidated forecast effective tax rate.

For the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, the net tax expense was $87 million and $96 million, respectively. For the three and six months ended
June 29, 2024, the net tax expense was $29 million and $59 million, respectively. Net tax expense consists primarily of interim period tax expense based on
year-to-date pretax income multiplied by our forecasted effective tax rate. In addition to items specific to the period, our income tax rate is impacted by the mix
of earnings across the jurisdictions in which we operate, non-deductible Indemnification Agreement expense, and U.S. taxation of foreign earnings. Cash paid
for taxes, net of refunds was $43 million and $64 million for the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, respectively, and $60 million and $88 million for
the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, respectively.

On July 4, 2025, the One Big Beautiful Bill Act (“OBBBA”) was enacted in the U.S. The OBBBA includes significant provisions, such as the permanent
extension of certain expiring provisions of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, including 100% bonus depreciation, domestic research cost expensing, and the business
interest expense limitation and modifications of the international tax framework. The legislation has various effective dates from 2025 to 2027. We are
currently assessing its impact to our Consolidated Financial Statements and related disclosures.
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Note 18. (Loss) Earnings Per Common Share

The following table summarizes the reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used for the computation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per common
share:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions, except per share data) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Numerator for basic and diluted (loss) earnings per common share:

Net (loss) income $ (825) $ 30  $ (819) $ 73 
Less: preferred stock dividends 8  2  17  2 

Net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (833) $ 28  $ (836) $ 71 

Denominator for basic and diluted (loss) earnings per common
share:

Weighted average basic number of common shares outstanding 149  146  148  146 
Plus: dilutive effect of common stock equivalents —  3  —  2 

Weighted average diluted number of common shares outstanding 149  149  148  148 

Basic (loss) earnings per common share:
Basic $ (5.59) $ 0.19  $ (5.65) $ 0.49 
Diluted $ (5.59) $ 0.19  $ (5.65) $ 0.48 

For the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, diluted earnings per common share is computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for the period plus the dilutive effect of common stock equivalents using the if-converted method and treasury stock method based on the average
market price of our common stock for the period.

The following potentially dilutive instruments, presented as a weighted average of the instruments outstanding, were excluded from the calculation of diluted
(loss) earnings per common share because their effect would have been antidilutive, and in the case of certain PSUs, the contingency has not been satisfied.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
RSUs and other rights 5.9  0.7  6.0  0.7 
PSUs 2.2  0.9  2.2  1.1 
Preferred stock 0.5  0.1  0.5  — 

Note 19. Subsequent Events

Termination Agreement

On July 30, 2025, we entered into the Termination Agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Termination Agreement, we will make a pre-tax, one-
time cash payment of $1,590  million to Honeywell, which is expected to occur in the third quarter of 2025. In addition, we paid our regularly scheduled
payment of $35 million in July 2025. Upon completion of the pre-tax, one-time cash payment, the Indemnification Agreement will be fully terminated, we will
no longer be required to make any further payments to Honeywell under the Indemnification Agreement, and the associated affirmative and negative covenants
will no longer apply. As of June 28, 2025, we updated our assessment of what was probable and reasonably estimable under Accounting Standards Codification
450, Contingencies, based on the agreed
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payment amount. The liability of $1,625 million is recorded as current obligations payable under the Indemnification Agreement on the Unaudited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 28, 2025. To fulfill our obligation, we intend to use the proceeds from newly raised debt financing as contemplated by
the Debt Commitment Letter, together with cash on hand. To the extent that we are not able to raise the necessary financing by August 29, 2025, Honeywell
may cancel the Termination Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification Agreement. In the event we do not raise the necessary financing by October 30, 2025,
we also have the right to cancel the Termination Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification Agreement. Upon termination by either party, we will owe
Honeywell $100 million in liquidated damages. Refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies for further discussion.

Debt Commitment Letter

On July 30, 2025, in connection with the execution of the Termination Agreement, we entered into the Debt Commitment Letter with JPMorgan Chase Bank
N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank. Pursuant to the Debt Commitment Letter, we entered into an agreement to provide a new senior secured term loan facility in an
aggregate principal amount of up to $1,225 million, to be incurred as an incremental term loan under the A&R Credit Agreement, the proceeds of which, along
with a portion of our cash on hand, will be used by us to finance the Termination Agreement payment and to pay related fees and expenses. Refer to Note 16.
Commitments and Contingencies for further discussion.

Spin-off of ADI Global Distribution Segment

On July 30, 2025, we announced our intention to separate the ADI Global Distribution segment through a tax-free spin-off to our shareholders (the “ADI Spin-
Off”). Following the completion of the ADI Spin-Off, the Products and Solutions segment would continue to operate as Resideo and ADI Global Distribution
would become an independent public company.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included herein under “Item 1. Financial
Statements.” and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” (“MD&A”) included in our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (“Quarterly Report”) contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. These statements can be identified by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts, but rather are based on current
expectations, estimates, assumptions, and projections about our industries and our business and financial results. Forward-looking statements often include
words such as “anticipates,” “estimates,” “expects,” “projects,” “forecasts,” “intends,” “plans,” “continues,” “believes,” “may,” “will,” “goals,” and words and
terms of similar substance in connection with discussions of future operating or financial performance. This Quarterly Report includes industry and market data
that we obtained from various third-party sources, including forecasts based upon such data; as with any projection or forecast, forward-looking statements are
inherently susceptible to uncertainty and changes in circumstances. Our actual results may vary materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-
looking statements. Accordingly, undue reliance should not be placed on any forward-looking statement made by us or on our behalf. Although we believe that
the forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report are based on reasonable assumptions, you should be aware that many factors could affect our
actual financial results or results of operations and could cause actual results to differ materially from those in such forward-looking statements, including but
not limited to:

• competition from other companies in our markets and segments, as well as in new markets and emerging markets;
• compatibility and ease of integration of our products and solutions with third-party products and services and our ability to control such third party

integrations;
• the potential adverse impacts of tariffs, import/export restrictions, or other trade barriers on global economic conditions, financial markets and our

business;
• the impact of potentially volatile global market and economic conditions and industry and end market cyclicality, including factors such as interest

rates, inflation, energy costs, availability of financing, consumer spending habits and preferences, housing market changes, and employment rates;
• our ability to identify consumer preferences and industry standards, develop and protect intellectual property related thereto, and successfully market

new technologies, products, and services to consumers;
• our reliance on independent integrators to sell and install our solutions;
• our reliance on certain suppliers;
• the impact of disruptions in our supply chain from third-party suppliers and manufacturers, including our inability to obtain necessary raw materials

and product components, production equipment, or replacement parts;
• inability to consummate acquisitions on satisfactory terms or to integrate such acquisitions effectively;
• the impact of earthquakes, hurricanes, fires, power outages, floods, pandemics, epidemics, natural disasters, and other catastrophic events, or other

public health emergencies;
• failure to achieve and maintain a high level of product and service quality, including the impact of warranty claims, product recalls, and product

liability actions that may be brought against us;
• our ability to retain or expand relationships with significant customers;
• the significant failure or inability to comply with specifications and manufacturing requirements or delays or other problems with existing or new

products or inability to meet price requirements;
• inability to successfully execute transformation programs or to effectively manage our workforce;
• the failure to increase productivity through sustainable operational improvements;
• economic, political, regulatory, foreign exchange, and other risks of international operations;
• our dependence upon information technology infrastructure and network operations having adequate cyber-security functionality;
• risks that the termination of the Indemnification Agreement contemplated by the Termination Agreement with Honeywell does not occur because we

are not able to raise the necessary financing or otherwise;
• prior to its pending termination, risks associated with the Indemnification Agreement and our relationships with Honeywell, including our reliance on

Honeywell for the Honeywell Home trademark;
• our ability to spin-off ADI Global Distribution, including the timeframe and process for the same;
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• regulations and societal actions to respond to global climate change;
•     failure to comply with the broad range of current and future standards, laws, and regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate;
• the impact of potential material litigation matters, government proceedings, and other contingencies and uncertainties;
• uncertainty in the development, deployment, and the use of artificial intelligence in our products and services, as well as our business interests more

broadly;
• currency exchange rate, stock price, and effective tax rate fluctuations;
• the CD&R Stockholder’s interest in and influence over us that may diverge from, or even conflict with, interests of the holders of our common stock,

and the reduction in the relative voting power of holders of our common stock resulting from the issuance of preferred stock;
• our ability to maintain effective internal controls, deliver timely financial statements, and avoid the financial statements to become impaired and

damage public opinion;
• impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets, and long-lived assets;
• being required to make significant cash contributions to our defined benefit pension plans; and
• other risks detailed under the caption “Risk Factors” in this Quarterly Report, in Part II, Item 1A, and certain factors discussed elsewhere in our 2024

Annual Report on Form 10-K, and other filings we make with the SEC.

Other than as set forth below in Part II, Item lA, captioned “Risk Factors”, there have been no material changes to the risk factors described in our 2024 Annual
Report on Form 10-K. These risks could cause actual results to differ materially from those implied by forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report.
Even if our results of operations, financial condition, and liquidity, and the development of the industries in which we operate are consistent with the forward-
looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report, those results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods.

Any forward-looking statements made by us in this Quarterly Report speak only as of the date on which they are made. We are under no obligation to and
expressly disclaim any obligation to update or alter our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, subsequent events, or otherwise.
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Overview and Business Trends

We are a leading global manufacturer, developer, and distributor of technology-driven sensing and controls products and solutions that help homeowners and
businesses stay connected and in control of their comfort, security, energy use, and smart living. We are a leader in key product markets including home
heating, ventilation and air conditioning controls, smoke and carbon monoxide detection home safety and fire suppression, and security. Our global footprint
serves residential and commercial end-markets. Our solutions and services can be found in over 150 million residential and commercial spaces globally, with
tens of millions of new devices sold annually. We manage our business operations through two business segments, Products and Solutions and ADI Global
Distribution.

Our Products and Solutions segment is a leading building products manufacturer focused on residential controls and sensing solutions. Our offerings include
temperature and humidity control, water and air solutions, smoke and carbon monoxide detection home safety products, residential and small business security
products, video cameras, other home-related lifestyle convenience solutions, cloud infrastructure, installation and maintenance tools, and related software. We
also sell components to manufacturers of water heaters, heat pumps and boilers.

Our ADI Global Distribution segment is the leading global wholesale distributor of low-voltage products, including security and audio-visual solutions. With a
portfolio of over 500,000 professionally installed products, ADI Global Distribution serves both the commercial and residential markets across key specialty
categories including security, fire, audio-visual, access control, smart living, and data communications. This extensive offering is complemented by an
expanding suite of proprietary technologies and services, under key exclusive brands such as Control4, OvrC, Araknis Networks, and WattBox.

Our financial performance is influenced by macroeconomic factors underlying end user demand such as repair and remodeling activity, residential and non-
residential construction, new and existing home sales, employment rates, interest rates and bank lending standards, and supply chain dynamics that can be
influenced by geopolitics. The ongoing uncertainty and volatility in the global macroeconomic environment have affected, and could continue to affect, our
visibility toward future performance. Uncertainties remain including the global tariff environment, potential for changes in inflation and interest rates,
increased labor costs, reduced consumer spending due to softening labor markets, elevated mortgage rates, shifts in energy policies, and potential market and
other disruption from the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine as well as the Middle East crisis.

Current Period Highlights

• Net revenue of $1.94 billion, up 22.3% from $1.59 billion in the second quarter of 2024

• Gross profit margin of 29.3%, compared to 28.1% in the second quarter of 2024

• Income from operations of $177 million, or 9.1% of revenue, compared to $122 million, or 7.7% of revenue in the second quarter of 2024

• Fully diluted loss per common share of $5.59, compared to $0.19 diluted earnings per common share in the second quarter of 2024

• Cash flow generated from operations was $200 million in the second quarter of 2025, compared to $92 million in the second quarter of 2024

Outlook

For the remainder of 2025, we anticipate executing our business operations against a highly dynamic global macroeconomic environment. The vast majority of
costs associated with the building products that the Products and Solutions segment sells in the U.S. are incurred in Mexico. Most Products and Solutions
products manufactured in Mexico, along with a significant portion of the ADI Global Distribution segment products sourced in Mexico, are currently exempt
from tariffs under the United States-Mexico-Canada Agreement (USMCA). Additional tariff impact relates to products imported from China (and other Asian
countries) and the European Union primarily by our ADI Global Distribution segment. We intend to take actions to essentially mitigate the cost impact of any
tariffs that affect our business; however, rising prices and other macroeconomics factors may lead to lower purchase levels by our customers. We are
monitoring these dynamics very closely and will make adjustments in our business operation execution, as appropriate. Based on the aforementioned, we
updated our 2025 revenue outlook to be up low double-digits year-over-year. On July 30, 2025, we
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also entered into an agreement with Honeywell to accelerate and eliminate all future monetary obligations under the Indemnification Agreement and entered
into the Debt Commitment Letter to partially fund the termination. Refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies and Note 19. Subsequent Events for
further discussion.

Results of Operations

The following table represents results of operations on a consolidated basis for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions, except per share data and percentages) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024
Net revenue $ 1,943  $ 1,589  $ 3,713  $ 3,075 
Cost of goods sold 1,374  1,142  2,633  2,228 

Gross profit 569  447  1,080  847 
Gross profit % 29.3 % 28.1 % 29.1 % 27.5 %

Operating expenses:
Research and development expenses 41  21  76  46 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 319  280  625  511 
Intangible asset amortization 30  13  60  22 
Restructuring, impairment and extinguishment costs 2  11  6  18 

Total operating expenses 392  325  767  597 
Income from operations 177  122  313  250 

Indemnification Agreement expense 882  47  972  90 
Other expenses, net 9  1  15  — 
Interest expense, net 24  15  49  28 

Net (loss) income before taxes (738) 59  (723) 132 
Provision for income taxes 87  29  96  59 

Net (loss) income (825) 30  (819) 73 
Less: preferred stock dividends 8  2  17  2 
Net (loss) income available to common stockholders $ (833) $ 28  $ (836) $ 71 

Net (loss) income per common share:
Basic $ (5.59) $ 0.19  $ (5.65) $ 0.49 
Diluted $ (5.59) $ 0.19  $ (5.65) $ 0.48 

Net Revenue

Three months ended

Net revenue for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was $1,943 million, an increase of $354 million, or 22.3%, from the same period in 2024, primarily due
to $218 million of revenue from the acquisition of Snap One, $64 million from favorable price and mix, $63 million from higher sales volume, and $11 million
from favorable foreign currency exchange rates.

Six months ended

Net revenue for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $3,713 million, an increase of $638 million, or 20.7%, from the same period in 2024, primarily due to
$446 million of revenue from the acquisition of Snap One, $114 million from higher sales volume, and $83 million from favorable price and mix.
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Gross Profit

Three months ended

The chart below presents the drivers of the gross profit variance from the three months ended June 29, 2024 to the three months ended June 28, 2025.

Gross profit for three months ended June 28, 2025 was $569 million, an increase of $122 million, or 27.3%, as compared to the same period in 2024, as shown
in the above waterfall.

Gross margin rate for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was 29.3%, an increase of 120 basis points (“bps”) as compared to the same period in 2024. The
increase was primarily driven by favorable price and mix shift of 120 bps, and the acquisition of Snap One of 80 bps. The increase was partially offset by lower
margins on new volumes of 70 bps.
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Six months ended

The chart below presents the drivers of the gross profit variance from the six months ended June 29, 2024 to the six months ended June 28, 2025.

Gross profit for six months ended June 28, 2025 was $1,080 million, an increase of $233 million, or 27.5%, as compared to the same period in 2024, as shown
in the above waterfall.

Gross margin rate for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was 29.1%, an increase of 150 bps as compared to the same period in 2024. The increase was
primarily driven by favorable impacts from the acquisition of Snap One of 110 bps and favorable price and mix shift of 70 bps. The increase was partially
offset by lower volumes of 30 bps.

Research and Development Expenses

Three months ended

Research and development expenses for the three months ended June 28, 2025 were $41 million, an increase of $20 million or 95.2% as compared to the same
period in 2024. The increase was driven by $11 million in the Product and Solutions segment related to incremental headcount and third party services to
develop and introduce new products into the market, and $9 million in the ADI Global Distribution segment related to the inclusion of Snap One.

Six months ended

Research and development expenses for the six months ended June 28, 2025 were $76 million, an increase of $30 million, or 65.2%, as compared to the same
period in 2024. The increase was driven by $17 million in the ADI Global Distribution segment primarily related to the inclusion of Snap One, and $13 million
in the Product and Solutions segment related to incremental headcount and third party services to develop and introduce new products into the market.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Three months ended

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 28, 2025 were $319 million, an increase of $39 million, or 13.9%, as compared to
the same period in 2024. The increase was primarily driven by $20 million from the inclusion of Snap One, net of prior year acquisition and integration costs,
and $17 million of incremental operating costs, including payroll and benefits, rent, marketing, and third party spend.

Six months ended

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 28, 2025 were $625 million, an increase of $114 million, or 22.3%, as compared to
the same period in 2024. The increase was primarily driven by $82 million from the inclusion of Snap One, net of prior year acquisition and integration costs,
and $34 million of incremental operating costs including payroll and benefits, rent, marketing, IT, third party spend, and travel expense.

Intangible Asset Amortization

Three months ended

Intangible asset amortization for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was $30 million, an increase of $17 million, or 130.8% as compared with the same
period in 2024. The increase was primarily due to additional amortization expense of $16 million associated with the new intangibles from the Snap One
acquisition.

Six months ended

Intangible asset amortization for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $60 million, an increase of $38 million, or 172.7% as compared with the same period
in 2024. The increase was primarily due to additional amortization expense of $36 million associated with the new intangibles from the Snap One acquisition.

Restructuring, Impairment and Extinguishment Costs

Three months ended

Restructuring, impairment and extinguishment costs for the three months ended June 28, 2025 were $2 million, a decrease of $9 million, or 81.8%, as
compared to the same period in 2024. The decrease was primarily due to $6 million of debt extinguishment costs as part of the Snap One acquisition, and $5
million of impairment expense related to an equity security incurred in the prior year. The decrease was partially offset by $2 million of restructuring expenses
incurred during the three months ended June 28, 2025. Restructuring expenses primarily relate to employee termination costs.

Six months ended

Restructuring, impairment and extinguishment costs for the six months ended June 28, 2025 were $6 million, a decrease of $12 million, or 66.7%, as compared
to the same period in 2024. The decrease was primarily due to $6 million of debt extinguishment costs as part of the Snap One acquisition, and $5 million of
impairment expense related to an equity security incurred in the prior year.

Indemnification Agreement Expense

Three months ended

Indemnification Agreement expense for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was $882 million, up $835 million from the $47 million recorded in the same
period of 2024. The increase was driven by the recognition of additional expense in connection with our agreement to terminate the Indemnification Agreement
with Honeywell. This expense reflects the revised estimate of our liability under the agreement of $1,625 million.
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Six months ended

Indemnification Agreement expense for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $972 million, up $882 million from the $90 million recorded in the same
period of 2024. The increase was driven by the recognition of additional expense in connection with our agreement to terminate the Indemnification Agreement
with Honeywell. This expense reflects the revised estimate of our liability under the agreement of $1,625 million.

Other Expenses, Net

Three months ended

Other expenses, net for the three months ended June 28, 2025 were $9 million, an increase of $8 million as compared to the same period in 2024. The increase
was primarily driven by $7 million in unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates.

Six months ended

Other expenses, net for the six months ended June 28, 2025 were $15 million, an increase of $15 million as compared to the same period in 2024. The increase
was primarily driven by $16 million in unfavorable foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest Expense, Net

Three months ended

Interest expense, net for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was $24 million, an increase of $9 million, or 60.0%, as compared to the same period in 2024.
The increase was due to an increase in our long-term debt resulting in $4 million of higher interest expense and a decrease of $4 million in interest rate
derivative related receipts due to interest rate fluctuations and a lower aggregate notional due to swap maturities.

Six months ended

Interest expense, net for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $49 million, an increase of $21 million, or 75.0%, as compared to the same period in 2024.
The increase was due to an increase in our long-term debt resulting in $9 million of higher interest expense, a decrease of $8 million in interest rate derivative
related receipts due to interest rate fluctuations and a lower aggregate notional due to swap maturities, and lower interest income of $3 million as a result of
lower interest rates and lower cash balances.

Tax Expense

Three months ended

Income tax expense for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was $87 million, an increase of $58 million as compared to the same period in 2024. The
increase was primarily driven by a decrease in income before taxes, and an increase in the nondeductible Indemnification Agreement expense. The effective
income tax rate decreased from 49.2% to (11.8)%, primarily driven by the mix of earnings across the jurisdictions in which we operate, decreased income
before taxes with relatively fixed non-deductible expenses and a large increase in the non-deductible Indemnification Agreement expense, and U.S. taxation of
foreign earnings.

Six months ended

Income tax expense for the six months ended June 29, 2024 was $96 million, an increase of $37 million as compared to the same period in 2024. The increase
was primarily driven by a decrease in income before taxes and an increase in the non-deductible Indemnification Agreement expense. The effective income tax
rate decreased from 44.7% to (13.3)%, primarily driven by the mix of earnings across the jurisdictions in which we operate, decreased income before taxes
with relatively fixed non-deductible expenses and a large increase in the non-deductible Indemnification Agreement expense, and U.S. taxation of foreign
earnings.
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Segment Results of Operations

Products and Solutions

Three months ended

The chart below presents net revenue and income from operations for the three months ended June 28, 2025 and June 29, 2024.

Products and Solutions net revenue for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was $666 million, an increase of $36 million, or 5.7%, as compared to the same
period in 2024. The increase is primarily due to a $53 million favorable impact from price and mix, and $4 million from favorable foreign exchange rates. The
increase was partially offset by $22 million from lower volumes.

Products and Solutions income from operations for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was $142 million, an increase of $12 million, or 9.2%, as compared
to the same period in 2024. The increase is primarily due to favorable price and mix shift of $33 million, and lower material, freight, and other manufacturing
costs of $4 million. The increase was partially offset by lower volumes of $12 million, and $11 million of incremental research and development expenses
related to additional headcount and third party services to develop and introduce new products into the market.
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Six months ended

The chart below presents net revenue and income from operations for the six months ended June 28, 2025 and June 29, 2024.

Products and Solutions net revenue for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $1,315 million, an increase of $65 million, or 5.2%, as compared to the same
period in 2024. The increase is primarily due to a $74 million favorable impact from price and mix. The increase was partially offset by $6 million from lower
volumes, and $3 million from unfavorable foreign exchange rates.

Products and Solutions income from operations for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $278 million, an increase of $36 million, or 14.9%, as compared to
the same period in 2024. The increase is primarily due to favorable price and mix shift of $42 million, and lower material, freight, and other manufacturing
costs of $7 million. The increase was partially offset by $13 million of incremental research and development expenses related to planned investments that we
believe will drive future growth.

ADI Global Distribution

Three months ended

The chart below presents net revenue and income from operations for the three months ended June 28, 2025 and June 29, 2024.

ADI Global Distribution net revenue for the three months ended June 28, 2025, was $1,277 million, an increase of $318 million, or 33.2%, as compared to the
same period in 2024. The increase was primarily driven by $218 million of revenue
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from the acquisition of Snap One, $85 million from higher volumes, $11 million from favorable price and mix shift, and $7 million from favorable foreign
exchange rates.

ADI Global Distribution income from operations for the three months ended June 28, 2025 was $71 million, an increase of $9 million, or 14.5%, as compared
to the same period in 2024. The increase was primarily driven by a $97 million increase in gross profit driven by the inclusion of Snap One, higher volumes,
and net favorable price and mix shift. This increase was partially offset by an $87 million increase in operating expenses, including $61 million of selling,
general and administrative expenses, $17 million of amortization, and $9 million of incremental research and development cost. These increases were primarily
due to the inclusion of Snap One and incremental operating costs at the segment.

Six months ended

The chart below presents net revenue and income from operations for the six months ended June 28, 2025 and June 29, 2024.

ADI Global Distribution net revenue for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $2,398 million, an increase of $573 million, or 31.4%, as compared to the
same period in 2024. The increase was primarily driven by $446 million of revenue from the acquisition of Snap One, $120 million from higher volumes, and
$9 million from net favorable price and mix shift.

ADI Global Distribution income from operations for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $105 million, down $6 million, or 5.4%, as compared to the same
period in 2024. The decrease was primarily due to $186 million increase in operating expenses, including $132 million of selling, general and administrative
expenses, $37 million of amortization, and $17 million of research and development cost. These increases were primarily due to the inclusion of Snap One and
incremental operating costs at the segment. This decrease was partially offset by an $183 million increase in gross profit driven by the inclusion of Snap One,
higher volumes and net favorable price and mix shift.
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Corporate

Three months ended

Corporate costs for the three months ended June 28, 2025 were $36 million, a decrease of $34 million, or 48.6%, as compared to the same period in 2024. The
decrease was driven by $29 million of acquisition and integration costs, $6 million of debt extinguishment costs as part of the Snap One acquisition, and $5
million of impairment expense related to an equity security incurred in the prior year. The decrease was partially offset by incremental operating costs of $6
million including payroll and benefits, and third party spend.

Six months ended

Corporate costs for the six months ended June 28, 2025 were $70 million, a decrease of $33 million, or 32.0%, as compared to the same period in 2024. The
decrease was driven by $29 million of acquisition and integration costs, $6 million of debt extinguishment costs as part of the Snap One acquisition, and $5
million of impairment expense related to an equity security incurred in the prior year. The decrease was partially offset by incremental operating costs of $8
million including payroll and benefits and third party spend.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

As of June 28, 2025, total cash and cash equivalents were $753 million, of which 26% were held by foreign subsidiaries. Our liquidity is primarily dependent
on our ability to continue to generate positive cash flows from operations, supplemented by external sources of capital, as needed. Additional liquidity may also
be provided through access to the capital markets and our A&R Revolving Credit Facility in an aggregate principal amount of $500 million.

Liquidity

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the rate of sales growth, market acceptance of our products, the timing and extent of
research and development projects, potential acquisitions of companies or technologies, and the expansion of our sales and marketing activities. We may enter
into acquisitions or strategic arrangements in the future, which also could require us to seek additional equity or debt financing. While we may elect to seek
additional funding at any time, we believe our existing cash, cash equivalents, and availability under our credit facilities are sufficient to meet our capital
requirements through at least the next 12 months and the longer term.

We may from time to time take steps to reduce our debt or otherwise improve our financial position. These actions could include prepayments, liquidated
damages, open market debt repurchases, negotiated repurchases, other redemptions or retirements of outstanding debt, opportunistic refinancing of debt, raising
additional capital, or divesting certain assets. The amount of prepayments or the amount of debt that may be refinanced, repurchased, or otherwise retired, if
any, will depend on market conditions, trading levels of our debt, our cash position, compliance with debt covenants, and other considerations.

To fulfill our obligation under the Termination Agreement, we intend to use the proceeds from newly raised debt financing as contemplated by the Debt
Commitment Letter, together with cash on hand. To the extent that we are not able to raise the necessary financing by August 29, 2025, Honeywell may cancel
the Termination Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification Agreement. In the event we do not raise the necessary financing by October 30, 2025, we also
have the right to cancel the Termination Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification Agreement. Upon termination by either party, we will owe Honeywell
$100 million in liquidated damages. Refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies for further discussion.
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Credit Agreement

As of June 28, 2025, we had $2,013 million of long-term debt outstanding under our A&R Credit Agreement, Senior Notes due 2029, and Senior Notes due
2032, with $8 million due in the next twelve months. We have also entered into certain interest rate swap agreements based on Term SOFR. These interest rate
swap agreements effectively convert a portion of our variable-rate debt to fixed rate debt. Additionally, we assumed an interest rate cap in 2024 which
effectively caps the interest on a portion of our variable rate debt with a notional amount of $344 million and a strike rate of 4.79%.

Senior Notes

In August 2021, we issued $300 million in principal amount of 4.000% Senior Notes due in 2029.

In July 2024, we issued $600 million in aggregate principal of 6.500% Senior Notes due 2032.

The Senior Notes due 2029 and Senior Notes due 2032 are senior unsecured obligations of Resideo guaranteed by Resideo’s existing and future domestic
subsidiaries and rank equally with all of Resideo’s senior unsecured debt and senior to all of Resideo’s subordinated debt.

Covenant Compliance

As of June 28, 2025, we were in compliance with all covenants related to the A&R Credit Agreement, Senior Notes due 2029, and Senior Notes due 2032. We
may be subject to new or additional debt covenants in connection with the Debt Commitment Letter.

Refer to Note 12. Long-Term Debt and Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments for a description of our debt obligations and the timing of future principal
and interest payments, including impacts from our interest rate derivatives.

Common Share Repurchase Program

In August 2023, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program for the repurchase of up to $150 million of our common
stock over an unlimited time period. During the three and six months ended June 28, 2025, there were no common share repurchases. As of June 28, 2025, we
had $108 million of authorized repurchases remaining under the Share Repurchase Program.

Cash Flow Summary for the Six Months Ended June 28, 2025 and June 29, 2024

Our cash flows from operating, investing, and financing activities for the six months ended June 28, 2025 and June 29, 2024, as reflected in the Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements, are summarized as follows:

Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 28, 2025 June 29, 2024 $ change
Cash provided by (used for):

Operating activities $ 135  $ 94  $ 41 
Investing activities (51) (1,364) 1,313 
Financing activities (33) 1,052  (1,085)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 10  (5) 15 

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 61  $ (223) $ 284 

Net cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $135 million. Compared to the six months ended June 29, 2024, net cash
provided by operating activities increased $41  million. During the six months ended June 28, 2025, we recorded $972  million of expense related to the
termination of the Indemnification Agreement which was the primary driver of the net loss of $819 million compared to $73 million of net income in the
comparative period. This change of $892 million was partially offset by higher non-cash charges of $42 million primarily due to a $44 million increase in
depreciation and amortization, and favorable changes of $891 million in assets and liabilities. These changes in
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assets and liabilities were primarily due to a $902 million increase in the Indemnification Agreement liability from its termination, and a $73 million increase in
accrued liabilities primarily due to an increase in taxes payable. This was partially offset by an unfavorable change in other assets and liabilities of $62 million
primarily due to increases in deferred tax assets and lease right-of-use assets and $85 million of increased accounts receivable primarily due to higher sales.

Net cash used for investing activities for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $51 million. Compared to the six months ended June 29, 2024, net cash used
for investing activities decreased $1,313  million, due to the prior year Snap One acquisition for $1,334  million, partially offset by an increase in capital
expenditures of $15 million.

Net cash used for financing activities for the six months ended June 28, 2025 was $33 million. Compared to the six months ended June 29, 2024, net cash used
by financing activities decreased $1,085 million, primarily due to a decrease in proceeds from the term loan borrowings of $582 million and Preferred Stock
issuance of $482 million when compared to the prior year and an increase in preferred stock dividend payments of $17 million in the current year.

Contractual Obligations and Probable Liability Payments

In addition to our long-term debt discussed above, our material cash requirements include the following contractual obligations.

Indemnification Agreement Payments

In connection with our Spin-Off from Honeywell, we entered into the Indemnification Agreement with Honeywell. On July 30, 2025, we entered into the
Termination Agreement with Honeywell to terminate the Indemnification Agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Termination Agreement, we
will make a pre-tax, one-time cash payment of $1,590 million to Honeywell, which is expected to occur in the third quarter of 2025. In addition, we paid our
regularly scheduled payment of $35 million in July 2025. Upon completion of the pre-tax, one-time cash payment, the Indemnification Agreement will be fully
terminated, we will no longer be required to make any further payments to Honeywell under the Indemnification Agreement, and the associated affirmative and
negative covenants will no longer apply. As of June 28, 2025, we updated our assessment of what was probable and reasonably estimable under Accounting
Standards Codification 450, Contingencies, based on the agreed payment amount. The liability of $1,625 million is recorded as current obligations payable
under the Indemnification Agreement in the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 28, 2025. To fulfill our obligation, we intend to use the proceeds
from newly raised debt financing as contemplated by the Debt Commitment Letter, together with cash on hand. To the extent that we are not able to raise the
necessary financing by August 29, 2025, Honeywell may cancel the Termination Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification Agreement. In the event we do
not raise the necessary financing by October 30, 2025, we also have the right to cancel the Termination Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification
Agreement. Upon termination by either party, we will owe Honeywell $100 million in liquidated damages. During the six months ended June 28, 2025, we
paid Honeywell $70 million under the Indemnification Agreement. For further discussion, refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies and Note 19.
Subsequent Events.

Environmental Liability

We make environmental liability payments for sites which we own and are directly responsible. As of June 28, 2025, a liability of $22 million was deemed
probable and reasonably estimable.

Operating Leases

We have operating lease arrangements for the majority of our manufacturing centers, distribution centers, branches, offices, engineering and lab sites,
warehouses, automobiles, and certain equipment. As of June 28, 2025, we had operating lease payment obligations of $284 million, with $52 million payable
within 12 months.

Other Matters

Litigation, Environmental Matters, and the Indemnification Agreement

Refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies for further discussion.

38



Table of Contents

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further discussion.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risk from foreign currency exchange rates, commodity price risk, and interest rates, which could affect operating results, financial
position, and cash flows. We manage our exposure to these market risks through our regular operating and financing activities and, when appropriate, through
the use of derivative financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 28, 2025, the remaining Swap Agreements, with a notional value of $280 million, effectively convert a portion of our $1,113 million long-term
variable rate A&R Term B Facility to fixed rate debt. Specifically, the Swap Agreements effectively convert a portion of our variable interest rate obligations to
a rate based on Term SOFR with a minimum rate of 0.39% per annum to a base fixed weighted average rate of 1.57% over the remaining terms. Additionally,
our interest rate cap agreement notional value is $344 million with a strike rate of 4.79% as of June 28, 2025, which effectively caps SOFR on the notional
amount at that rate.

As of June 28, 2025, an increase in interest rates by 100 bps would have an approximately $8 million impact on our annual interest expense.

For more information on the Swap Agreements and interest rate cap, refer to Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments and Note 14. Fair Value.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risks from changes in currency exchange rates. While we primarily transact with customers and suppliers in the U.S. dollar, we also
transact in foreign currencies, primarily including the British Pound, Mexican Peso, Indian Rupee, Euro, Canadian Dollar, and Czech Koruna. These exposures
may impact total assets, liabilities, future earnings and/or operating cash flows. Our exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency exchange rates
emerges from transactions arising from international trade, foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities, and international financing activities
between subsidiaries. We rely primarily on natural offsets to address our exposures and may supplement this approach from time to time by entering into
forward and option hedging contracts. As of June 28, 2025, we have no outstanding foreign currency hedging arrangements.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to price risk for commodities used in manufacturing including steel, aluminum, copper, nickel, and semiconductors. Current macroeconomic
and geopolitical factors, such as commodity-based tariffs, may increase the risk of price volatility. We attempt to pass through significant changes in
component and raw material costs to our customers based on the contractual terms of our arrangements. In limited situations, we may not be fully compensated
for such changes in costs.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a system of disclosure controls and procedures designed to give reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed
or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time
periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.
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Management recognizes that any disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives. Because there are inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control
issues and instances of fraud have been or will be detected.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, with the assistance of other members of our management, conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the
period covered by this Quarterly Report. Based upon such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective at a reasonable assurance level as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended June 28, 2025 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report for a discussion on legal
proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

We face a variety of risks that are inherent in our business and our industry, including operational, legal and regulatory risks. Such risks could cause our actual
results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements, expectations and historical trends. There have been no material changes to the risk factors
described in our 2024 Annual Report on Form 10-K, except as reflected in the revised risk factors below.

As Previously Disclosed in our Form 10-Q for the period ended March 29, 2025

Enhanced tariff, import/export restrictions, or other trade barriers may have an adverse impact on global economic conditions.

We are subject to certain laws and regulations affecting our international operations which, among other things, provide certain preferential duties and tariffs
for qualifying imports subject to compliance with the applicable rules of origin, and other requirements. There have been, and continue to be, uncertainties with
respect to the global economy and trade relations between the U.S. and other countries globally. Implementation of more restrictive trade policies or the
renegotiation of existing U.S. trade agreements or trade agreements of other countries where we sell, procure, or manufacture large quantities of products and
services or procure supplies and other materials incorporated into our products could negatively impact our business results of operations, cash flows, and
financial condition. Tariffs, sanctions and other barriers to trade could adversely affect the business of our customers and suppliers, which could in turn
negatively impact our net revenue and results of operations. In 2025, the Trump administration implemented or announced tariffs and other trade actions
against countries where we manufacture, source, or sell goods including China, Vietnam, the European Union, the United Kingdom, Mexico, and Canada.
Given these pronouncements, there is currently significant uncertainty about the future relationship between the U.S. and these countries with respect to trade
policies, treaties, tariffs, and customs duties and taxes. If tariffs or duties are expanded, increased, or interpreted by a court or governmental agency to apply to
more of our products, then our exposure on such imported products and components could be significant. Additionally, new trade or market access barriers
could disrupt our operations. These impacts could have a material effect on our financial results. We and our distribution business suppliers import goods,
components, and materials into the U.S. from certain of the regions where such tariffs may apply.

In addition, the U.S. federal government, as well as other governments including the United Kingdom and European Union, have imposed certain restrictions
on the licensing, use and import, and export of certain surveillance, networking, telecommunications, and other equipment manufactured by certain of our
suppliers based in China for our ADI Global Distribution segment, which may require us to find additional sources of end-user products and result in higher
costs. We have in the past had inquiries from the U.S. federal government regarding these sales of certain Chinese made products in the U.S., which inquiries
could impact our business reputation. We cannot predict the extent to which the U.S. or other countries will impose new or additional quotas, duties, tariffs,
taxes, or other similar restrictions upon the import or export of our products in the future, nor can we predict future trade policy or the terms of any renegotiated
trade agreements and their impact on our business. The continuing adoption or expansion of trade restrictions, the occurrence of a trade war, or other
governmental action related to tariffs or trade agreements or policies has the potential to adversely impact demand for our products, our costs, our customers,
our suppliers, and the U.S. economy, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition.

New Risk Factors

We cannot provide any assurances that we will be successful in completing the termination of the Indemnification Agreement.

On July 30, 2025, we entered into the Termination Agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Termination Agreement, we will make a cash payment
of $1,590 million to Honeywell, which is expected to occur in the third quarter of 2025. Upon this payment, the Indemnification Agreement will be fully
terminated, we will no longer be required to
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make any further payments to Honeywell under the Indemnification Agreement, and the associated affirmative and negative covenants will no longer apply. To
fulfill our obligation, we intend to use the proceeds from newly raised debt financing as contemplated by the Debt Commitment Letter, together with cash on
hand. To the extent that we are not able to raise the necessary financing by August 29, 2025, Honeywell may cancel the Termination Agreement and reinstate
the Indemnification Agreement. In the event we do not raise the necessary financing by October 30, 2025, we also have the right to cancel the Termination
Agreement and reinstate the Indemnification Agreement. Upon termination by either party, we will owe Honeywell $100 million in liquidated damages. While
we have entered into the Debt Commitment Letter, there can be no assurance that we will be able to raise the necessary financing to enable us to fund the
termination payment within the time period permitted by the Termination Agreement.

Even if we are able to complete the termination of the Indemnification Agreement, we expect to incur a significant amount of debt to finance the termination
payment, which will significantly increase our total debt outstanding and potentially exacerbate the risks relating to having significant debt outstanding as
disclosed in the “Risk Factors” contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. For example, “The terms of our
debt documents may impose restrictions on our business and our operations require substantial capital and we may not be able to obtain additional
capital that we need in the future on favorable terms or at all.”

We cannot provide any assurances that we will be successful in completing the proposed spin-off of ADI Global Distribution.

We cannot predict the outcome of the process we have begun to pursue a tax-free spin-off of ADI Global Distribution. We cannot provide any assurances
regarding the timeframe for completing the ADI Spin-Off, the allocation of assets and liabilities between Resideo and ADI Global Distribution, that the other
conditions of the ADI Spin-Off will be met, or that the ADI Spin-Off will be completed at all. Furthermore, the ADI Spin-Off may present financial and
operational risks, including (1) the diversion of management attention from existing core businesses, (2) adverse effects (the loss of existing clients and the
difficulties associated with securing new clients) from the announcement of the planned or potential activity, and (3) the challenges associated with separating
personnel and financial and other systems.

A spin-off of ADI Global Distribution could adversely affect our earnings and cash flows.

ADI Global Distribution contributed 65% of our revenue and 34% of our operating income during the six months ended June 28, 2025 as well as a significant
portion of our cash flows. We have begun to pursue a tax-free spin-off of ADI Global Distribution. Although there can be no assurance that this process will
result in a consummated transaction, any separation of all or a portion of ADI Global Distribution’s business could adversely affect our earnings and cash
flows.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the three months ended June 28, 2025, we did not make any common share repurchases. As of June 28, 2025, we had approximately $108 million of
authorized repurchases remaining under the Share Repurchase Program.

Item 5. Other Information.

Amendment to Officer Severance Plan

On July 31, 2025, the Compensation and Human Capital Management Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Committee”) approved an amendment to the
Resideo Technologies, Inc. Severance Plan for Designated Officers (the “Officer Severance Plan”) that provides enhanced severance benefits to any participant
in the Officer Severance Plan who is subject to a covered termination of employment that occurs within the eighteen month period following a divestiture or
similar transaction involving the ADI Global Distribution Business or the Products & Solutions Business that does not constitute a “change in control” under
the Officer Severance Plan and which transaction occurs prior to December 31, 2027. Participation in the Officer Severance Plan remains limited to the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and reporting officers of the Company under Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

In addition to the benefits that are determined to be payable under Section 5(a) of the Officer Severance Plan, a participant in the Officer Severance Plan, as
amended, will be entitled to, in connection with such covered termination that occurs
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during the relevant period discussed above, with respect to awards under the Company’s Amended and Restated 2018 Stock Incentive Plan that are held by
such participant as of the date of such participant’s covered termination, (i) the full accelerated vesting of any then-unvested award that is subject only to time-
based vesting conditions and (ii) the full accelerated vesting of any award subject to performance-based vesting conditions based on target performance.

In addition, the Officer Severance Plan was amended to provide that, upon a participant’s covered termination that is not in connection with a “change in
control,” such participant is eligible for a prorated cash bonus based upon actual achievement of the performance objectives for the performance year in which
the covered termination occurs. Such prorated bonus will be paid to applicable participants at the same time annual bonuses are paid to the Company’s officers
in accordance with the Company’s normal practices.

As described more fully in the Officer Severance Plan, in order to receive the foregoing benefits, a participant in the Officer Severance Plan must execute a
separation agreement and general release of claims in our favor and affirm his or her continuing obligations towards us, including his or her ongoing restrictive
covenants.

In addition, the Officer Severance Plan reflects certain additional changes to conform to best practices, although such changes do not impact the severance
benefits to be provided and do not provide for a gross-up of severance benefits in the event that excise taxes under Section 280G of the Code are imposed on
the severance benefits.

The foregoing description of the Officer Severance Plan does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the
Plan, a copy of which is filed herewith as Exhibit 10.2 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to Jay Geldmacher Stock Option Agreement

On July 31, 2025, the Committee approved an amendment to Jay Geldmacher’s stock option agreement dated May 28, 2020 to extend the period for Mr.
Geldmacher to exercise his vested stock options following his previously-announced retirement to one year following his termination of service pursuant to his
transition letter agreement dated November 6, 2024, a copy of which is filed herewith as Exhibit 10.3 and incorporated herein by reference.

Approval of Pro-Rated Incentive Payout for Dana Huth

The Company previously disclosed that in order to provide further focus and alignment to the Company’s Products & Solutions segment, Dana Huth
transitioned to a new, non-executive officer position of Senior Vice President, Chief Revenue Officer, Products & Solutions, effective August 9, 2024. On
August 4, 2025, Mr. Huth’s employment was involuntarily terminated without cause under circumstances that entitle him to severance benefits as previously
described. In addition, in recognition of his service and efforts to facilitate a smooth transition of leadership through his employment in 2025, on July 31, 2025,
the Committee approved payment to Mr. Huth of a payout of his annual incentive opportunity, based on actual results for 2025, pro-rated for his period of
employment in 2025.

Rule 10b5-1 Trading Arrangements

During the three months ended June 28, 2025, no director or officer of the Company adopted, modified, or terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or
“non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement”, as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.
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Item 6. Exhibits.

The Exhibits listed below on the Exhibit Index are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this Quarterly Report.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

10.1 Termination Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2025, by and among Honeywell International Inc., Resideo Technologies, Inc., Resideo
Intermediate Holding Inc. and the guarantors party thereto and identified on the signature pages thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 30, 2025, File No. 001-38635)

10.2 Resideo Technologies, Inc. Severance Plan For Designated Officers as amended on July 31, 2025 ‡ (filed herewith)

10.3 Amendment to Stock Option Agreement with Jay Geldmacher dated July 31, 2025 ‡ (filed herewith)

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document (filed herewith)

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema (filed herewith)

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase (filed herewith)

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase (filed herewith)

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase (filed herewith)

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase (filed herewith)

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

‡ Indicates management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

Resideo Technologies, Inc.

Date: August 5, 2025 By: /s/ Michael Carlet
Michael Carlet
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: August 5, 2025 By: /s/ Jeffrey Kutz
Jeffrey Kutz
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.2

RESIDEO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. SEVERANCE PLAN
FOR DESIGNATED OFFICERS

Effective as of
July 31, 2025

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the Resideo Technologies, Inc. Severance Plan for Designated Officers (the “Plan”) is to provide severance
related benefits to select eligible employees of Resideo Technologies, Inc. and its participating divisions, subsidiaries and affiliates
and whose employment relationship is involuntarily terminated at the initiative of the Company for reasons other than Cause and
who are thereafter, as a result of such termination, no longer employed by the Company or any successor thereto.

This Plan is intended to be an unfunded “welfare benefit plan” within the meaning of Section 3(1) of ERISA and is being
maintained as a “top hat” plan for a select group of management or highly compensated employees.

The terms of this Plan are intended to, and shall be interpreted so as to, comply in all respects with the provisions of
Section  409A of the Code, and the regulations and rulings promulgated thereunder (collectively, “Code Section  409A”) and, if
necessary, any provision of the Plan shall be held null and void to the extent such provision (or any part thereof) fails to comply with
Code Section 409A.

This Plan is comprised of Part  I--Provisions Prior to a Change in Control, and Part  II--Special Provisions That Become
Effective Only Upon a Change in Control.

2. Effective Date

The Plan was originally established by Resideo effective November 1, 2018 and thereafter amended and restated effective
November  15,  2018. The Plan is hereby further amended and restated effective as of July  31,  2025, with respect to Participants
whose employment is terminated by the Company on or after such date.

PART I
PROVISIONS PRIOR TO A CHANGE IN CONTROL

3. Definitions

As used throughout the Plan unless otherwise clearly or necessarily indicated by context:

(a) “Annual Base Salary” means an amount equal to the product of (i) Base Salary, and (ii) twelve (12).
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(b) “Annual Incentive Compensation” means, except as provided in Section  23(a), an amount equal to the
product of the Participant’s (i) Incentive Award Target Percentage for the calendar year in which Participant’s Covered Termination
occurs, and (ii) Annual Base Salary.

(c) “Base Salary” means the highest monthly base salary payable to a Participant.

(d) “Board” means Resideo’s Board of Directors.

(e) “Cause” means any of the following: (i)  clear and convincing evidence of a significant violation of the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct; (ii)  the misappropriation, embezzlement or willful destruction of Company property of
significant value; (iii)(A) the willful failure to perform, (B) gross negligence in the performance of, or (C) intentional misconduct in
the performance of, significant duties that results in material harm to the business of the Company; (iv)  the conviction (treating a
nolo contendere plea as a conviction) of a felony (whether or not any right to appeal has been or may be exercised); (v) the failure to
cooperate fully in a Company investigation or the failure to be fully truthful when providing evidence or testimony in such
investigation; or (vi) clear and convincing evidence of the willful falsification of any financial records of the Company that are used
in compiling the Company’s financial statements or related disclosures, with the intent of violating Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles or, if applicable, International Financial Reporting Standards. In the case of a determination under Part  I of the Plan,
Cause shall be determined by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, with the concurrence of the Board and with the advice of
the Company’s functional leaders with expertise in such matters.

(f) “Change in Control” is deemed to occur at the time (i)  when any entity, person or group (other than the
Company or any savings, pension or other benefit plan maintained for the benefit of the Company’s employees) that theretofore
beneficially owned less than 30% of the Common Stock then outstanding, acquires shares of Common Stock in a transaction, or
series of transactions, which results in such entity, person or group, directly or indirectly, owning beneficially 30% or more of the
outstanding Common Stock, (ii) of the purchase of shares of Common Stock pursuant to a tender offer or exchange offer (other than
an offer by Resideo) for all, or any part of, the Common Stock, (iii) of a merger in which Resideo will not survive as an independent,
publicly owned corporation, (iv) of a consolidation, or a sale, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of Resideo’s
assets, (v) of a substantial change in the composition of the Board during any period of two consecutive years, such that individuals
who, at the beginning of such period, were members of the Board cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority thereof, unless
the election, or the nomination for election by the shareowners of Resideo, of each new director was approved by a vote of at least
two-thirds of the directors then still in office who were directors at the beginning of the period, or (vi) of any transaction or other
event which the Committee, in its discretion, determines to be a Change in Control for purposes of this Plan.

(g) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
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(h) “Committee” means the Compensation and Human Capital Management Committee.

(i) “Common Stock” means the common stock of Resideo or such other stock into which the common stock may
be changed as a result of split-ups, recapitalizations, reclassifications and any similar transaction.

(j) “Company” means Resideo and its subsidiaries and affiliated entities, as well as their respective successors.

(k) “Covered Termination” means, except as provided in Section  23(c), a termination event giving rise to
Severance Benefits under this Plan, as detailed in Section 7 hereof.

(l) “Determination Year” means the calendar year with respect to which performance is measured for purposes
of determining the amount of a Participant’s Incentive Award.

(m) “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time,
together with applicable final regulations thereunder.

(n) “Incentive Award” means the short-term incentive compensation award payable and determined pursuant to
the Company’s short-term incentive compensation plan, and shall not include any other performance or incentive award.

(o) “Incentive Award Target Percentage” means the Participant’s short-term incentive compensation target
percentage, as maintained in the Company’s executive compensation records.

(p) “Last Day of Active Employment” means a Participant’s final day of employment with the Company
(typically the day prior to the date the Participant would be eligible to commence the receipt of Severance Benefits), and shall be the
date on which the Participant’s active employment with the Company is severed within the meaning of Code Section 409A.

(q) “Medical Leave of Absence” means an absence from active employment due to a Participant’s inability to
perform the functions of his or her job, provided that during such absence the Participant (i)  is receiving short-term disability
benefits, (ii)  is receiving long-term disability benefits, (iii)  is on a medical leave of absence granted by the Company, or (iv) any
combination of (i)-(iii).

(r) “Participant” means Resideo’s Chief Executive Officer or a Section 16 Officer Participant.

(i) “Section  16 Officer Participant” means an individual who is a reporting officer of Resideo under
Section 16 of the Exchange Act of 1934.

(s) “Pay Continuation” means the component of the Severance Benefit described in Section 5(a)(i).
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(t) “Performance Year” means the calendar year with respect to which performance is measured for purposes of
determining the amount of a Participant’s Prorated Bonus, if applicable.

(u) “Plan Administrator” means the person defined in Section 10(a).

(v) “Pro Rata Factor” means for the Determination Year in which a Covered Termination occurs, a fraction the
numerator of which is equal to the number of calendar months which have elapsed from January 1st of such year through the end of
the month in which the Covered Termination occurs, and the denominator of which is twelve.

(w) “Pro Rata Bonus Factor” means for the Performance Year in which a Covered Termination occurs, a fraction
the numerator of which is equal to the number of days which have elapsed from January 1st of such Performance Year through the
date on which the Covered Termination occurs, and the denominator of which is the total number of days in such Performance Year.

(x) “Prorated Annual Incentive Compensation” means the component of the Severance Benefit described in
Section 5(a)(ii).

(y) “Prorated Bonus” means the component of the Severance Benefit described in Section 5(a)(iii).

(z) “Release” has the meaning set forth in Section 5(b) of the Plan.

(aa) “Resideo” means Resideo Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

(bb) “Severance Benefit” means the severance benefit described in Section 5(a) of the Plan.

(cc) “Severance Pay Factor” means, with respect to any Participant, the number of months of Pay Continuation to
which a Participant is entitled as specified in Section 5(a)(i).

(dd) “Severance Period” means the period during which a Participant is receiving Pay Continuation or, but for a
lump sum payment of Pay Continuation benefits after a Change in Control in accordance with Section 24(a), would be receiving Pay
Continuation.

4. Participation

A Participant shall continue to be a eligible for Severance Benefits under this Plan until the earlier of (i)  the date the
employment relationship with the Company is severed for reasons other than a Covered Termination, or (ii) the date the Participant
ceases to satisfy the definition of Participant hereunder; provided, however, any Participant who ceases to satisfy the definition of
Participant hereunder on or after a Change in Control shall nevertheless continue to be a Participant in the Plan. A Participant who is
at any time the subject of a Covered Termination shall continue to be a Participant until all of the benefits to which he or she is
entitled under the Plan, if any, have been paid.
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5. Amount and Payment of Severance Benefits

(a) Eligibility for Benefits. Subject to subparagraphs (b) - (d) below, a Participant who is the subject of a Covered
Termination shall receive the benefits described in this subparagraph (a).

(i) Pay Continuation.

(A) Resideo’s Chief Executive Officer shall receive a benefit in an amount equal to twenty-
four (24) months of Base Salary or, following a Change in Control an amount equal to twenty-four (24) months of
Base Salary plus two times his or her Annual Incentive Compensation.

(B) A Section  16 Officer Participant shall receive a benefit in an amount equal to eighteen  (18)
months of Base Salary or, following a Change in Control, an amount equal to twenty-four (24) months of Base Salary
plus two times his or her Annual Incentive Compensation.

(ii) Prorated Annual Incentive Compensation. Following a Change in Control, a Participant shall, in
respect of the year in which the Covered Termination occurs, receive an amount equal to his or her Annual Incentive
Compensation (as that term is defined in Section 23(a)) multiplied by the Pro Rata Factor.

(iii) Prorated Bonus. Without duplication of Section  5(a)(ii) above, a Participant shall, in respect of the
Performance Year in which the Covered Termination occurs, receive an amount equal to his or her Annual Base Salary
multiplied by the Pro Rata Bonus Factor, with payment of such Prorated Bonus based upon actual achievement of the
performance objectives for the Performance Year in which such Covered Termination occurs.

(iv) Benefit Continuation. To the extent otherwise provided in the applicable plan documents and policies,
Participants shall be eligible to continue their employee benefits during the Severance Period at active employee coverage
levels and active employee contribution rates, if any.

(b) Benefits Conditioned on Release. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 5 to the contrary, all benefits under
this Plan shall be provided in consideration for, and conditioned upon, (i)  the execution and non-revocation of a release by the
Participant of all claims, known or unknown, arising on or before the date of the release against the Company and its officers,
directors and employees in the form and manner prescribed by the Company (which release may include cooperation, nondisclosure,
non-competition, non-disparagement and confidentiality covenants) (the “Release”), (ii) the affirmation or initial agreement (as the
case may be), in a form and manner prescribed by the Company, of the Participant’s obligations under confidentiality, non-
competition, non-solicitation and intellectual property covenants in favor of the Company (which affirmation/initial agreement may
be made part of the Release), (iii) the repayment of any amounts due to the Company and (iv) the return by the Participant to the
Company of all property of the Company,
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including any and all electronic devices, documents, electronic data, trade secrets, proprietary and confidential information in the
Participant’s possession, custody or control.

A Participant must execute all required documents, including the Release, not later than sixty (60) days after the Participant’s
Last Day of Active Employment. If a Participant fails to execute such documents within the required time period, the Participant
shall not be entitled to receive Severance Benefits under this Plan.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the period during which a Participant has to sign and revoke the Release
begins in one taxable year of the Participant and ends in the Participant’s subsequent taxable year, any amounts payable under the
Plan will commence in the subsequent taxable year.

(c) Suspension of Benefits. The Company may, in its sole discretion, terminate or suspend all Plan benefits upon
learning, or having good reason to believe, that the Participant has violated the conditions and covenants described in Section 5(b).
In such case, any consideration received by a Participant prior to the date of such cessation or suspension of Plan benefits shall be
considered adequate consideration for the Release and other covenants hereunder. The Company’s right to suspend or terminate Plan
benefits hereunder shall not preclude the Company from pursuing other remedies for such violations, including, without limitation,
seeking injunctive relief.

(d) Nonduplication of Benefits. Any benefit determined to be payable to a Participant under this Plan shall,
subject to and consistent with Code Section 409A, be reduced by the amount of any similar severance, redundancy or employment
termination benefit payable to the Participant under (i)  any other severance plan sponsored or funded by the Company, (ii)  any
agreement between the Company and the Participant, whether oral or written, express or implied, relating to termination related
benefits, or (iii) any statutory or court mandated entitlement (including entitlements under foreign law), regardless of whether the
benefit determined under such other plan, agreement, statutory or court mandated entitlement is payable at an earlier or a later date
than payments under the Plan, it being the intention of this subparagraph (d) to protect the Company from the payment of duplicative
severance, redundancy or employment termination benefits.

6. Form and Timing of Benefit Payments

Except as provided in Section  24, any Pay Continuation shall be paid in substantially equal periodic installments
corresponding to the Participant’s normal payroll period commencing after the Participant’s Last Day of Active Employment. Any
Prorated Annual Incentive Compensation shall be paid annually in accordance with the Company’s normal practices with respect to
the payment of incentive compensation awards. Any Prorated Bonus shall be paid at the same time annual bonuses are paid to the
Company’s officers in accordance with the Company’s normal practices. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may, at its
sole discretion, delay the commencement of Severance Benefits until the Participant has executed a Release and the time period for
revoking such Release, if applicable, has expired. In such case, the Company shall commence Severance Benefits upon the receipt of
the Release or the expiration of the revocation period, as applicable, and any arrearages paid as part of the next payroll period.
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Payment of Severance Benefits shall cease in the event a Participant (i)  accepts re-employment with the Company, or
(ii) commences the receipt of his or her pension benefits from a Company-sponsored defined benefit pension plan.

7. Covered Terminations

In order to be eligible for Severance Benefits under Section 5, a Participant must be the subject of a Covered Termination. A
Covered Termination generally means an involuntary termination of employment initiated by the Company. In no event, however,
shall the following events constitute a Covered Termination:

(a) an involuntary termination for Cause;

(b) the death of a Participant during active employment;

(c) the Participant’s failure to timely return to work upon expiration of an authorized leave of absence. Such a
Participant will be treated as having voluntarily resigned from the Company;

(d) a termination of employment initiated as a result of a Participant’s refusal to accept a transfer to another
Company location; provided, however, a Participant whose employment is terminated within two (2) years following a Change in
Control solely as a result of his or her refusal to transfer to another Company location that is more than 50 miles from his or her
work location immediately prior to a Change in Control shall be treated as having been subject to a Covered Termination;

(e) in the case of a sale or other disposition of the Participant’s subsidiary, division or other business unit or
operation, a termination of employment initiated as a result of a Participant’s refusal to accept an offer of employment with the
successor entity; provided, however, in such case a Covered Termination shall be deemed to have occurred only if the Participant is
not offered substantially comparable employment with the successor entity, as determined by the Plan Administrator, in its sole
discretion. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, a Participant whose employment is terminated within two (2) years following a
Change in Control solely as a result of his or her refusal to accept employment with the successor entity at a location that is more
than 50 miles from his or her work location immediately prior to a Change in Control shall be treated as having been subject to a
Covered Termination; or

(f) if the Participant does not return to active employment within eighteen (18) months of commencing a Medical
Leave of Absence; provided, however, if a Participant is medically cleared to return to work (with documentation reasonably
acceptable to the Company) before the conclusion of such eighteen (18) month period and is ready and willing to do so but does not
return to active employment because (i) no comparable job for which the Participant is qualified is available, or (ii) such Participant
is unable to locate another comparable Company position within thirty (30) days following his or her return to work, then such
Participant shall be treated as having been subject to a Covered Termination.
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8. Forfeiture of Benefits

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary and except as provided in Section 24(b) or Section 31(c), the Company
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to cancel all benefits under this Plan in the event a Participant engages in any
activity that the Company considers detrimental to its interests, as determined by Resideo’s General Counsel or Chief Human
Resources Officer, or their delegees. Activities that the Company considers detrimental to its interests include, but are not limited to:

(a) any effort on the part of a Participant, either directly or indirectly, to recruit or solicit employees of the
Company for employment with another company without the written approval of Resideo’s Chief Human Resources Officer, or his
delegee;

(b) any effort on the part of a Participant, either directly or indirectly, to recruit or solicit customers of the
Company;

(c) the disclosure of any Company confidential or proprietary information, or the breach of any obligations under
the Participant’s agreements relating to intellectual property and confidential information;

(d) any intentional misconduct substantially damaging to the property or business of the Company;

(e) the commission of a fraud or misappropriation of property, proprietary information, intellectual property or
trade secrets of the Company for personal gain or for the benefit of another party;

(f) knowingly making false or misleading statements about the Company or its products, officers or employees to
competitors or customers or potential customers of the Company, or to current or former employees of the Company;

(g) a Participant’s holding himself or herself out as an active employee of the Company; or

(h) breaching any of the terms of the Release or any IP, confidentiality or noncompetition agreement or covenant.

9. Payment of Benefits Upon Death

If a Participant dies after signing and returning the Release, without revoking the Release, and before all Severance Benefits
have been paid, the balance of such payments will be paid to the Participant’s estate in a lump sum within sixty (60) days following
the Participant’s death.

10. Administration

(a) Plan Administration. Except as provided in Section  25, the Plan shall be administered by the Plan
Administrator, who shall have the powers and authorities as described in
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this Section 10. The Plan Administrator shall be the Company’s Chief Human Resources Officer, or his designee.

The Plan Administrator shall serve without additional compensation. The Plan Administrator shall keep or cause to be kept
such records and shall prepare or cause to be prepared such returns or reports as may be required by law or necessary for the proper
administration of the Plan.

(b) Powers and Duties of Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator shall have the full discretionary power and
authority to (i) construe and interpret the Plan (including, without limitation, supplying omissions from, correcting deficiencies in, or
resolving inconsistencies or ambiguities in, the language of the Plan); (ii)  determine all questions of fact arising under the Plan,
including questions as to eligibility for and the amount of benefits; (iii)  establish such rules and regulations (consistent with the
terms of the Plan) as it deems necessary or appropriate for administration of the Plan; (iv) delegate responsibilities to others to assist
it in administering the Plan; and (v) perform all other acts it believes reasonable and proper in connection with the administration of
the Plan. The Plan Administrator shall be entitled to rely on the records of the Company in determining any Participant’s entitlement
to, and the amount of, Severance Benefits under the Plan. Any determination of the Plan Administrator, including interpretations of
the Plan and determinations of questions of fact, shall be final and binding on all parties.

The Plan Administrator may retain attorneys, consultants, accountants or other persons (who may be employees of the
Company) to render advice and assistance and may delegate any of the authorities conferred on him under this Plan to such persons
as he shall determine to be necessary to effect the discharge of his duties hereunder. The Plan Administrator, the Company and its
officers and directors shall be entitled to rely upon the advice, opinions and determinations of any such persons. Any exercise of the
authorities set forth in this Section  10, whether by the Plan Administrator or his delegee, shall be final and binding upon the
Company and all Participants.

(c) Additional Discretionary Authority. The Plan Administrator may, in his sole and absolute discretion, waive the
requirement that a Participant execute a Release or confidentiality, non-competition, non-disparagement, non-solicitation and
intellectual property covenants in order to receive Severance Benefits.

(d) Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Company shall indemnify the Plan Administrator from all
claims for liability, loss, or damage (including payment of expenses in connection with defense against such claims) arising from any
act or failure to act in connection with the Plan.

11. Claims and Appeals Procedures

Except as provided in Section 25, the Plan’s benefit claims and appeals procedures shall be as follows:
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(a) Any request or claim for Plan benefits shall be deemed to be filed when a written request is made by the
claimant or the claimant’s authorized representative that is reasonably calculated to bring the claim to the attention of the Plan
Administrator.

(b) The Plan Administrator, or his designee, shall respond, in writing, to any claimant’s claim for benefits under
the Plan. Such response shall be provided within 90 days of its receipt by the Plan Administrator or, if special circumstances require
and the claimant is so notified, in writing, before the expiration of the initial 90-day period, within 180 days of its receipt by the Plan
Administrator. If the extension is necessary because the claimant has failed to submit the information necessary to decide the claim,
the Plan Administrator’s period for responding to such claim shall be tolled until the date that the claimant responds to the request
for additional information. The response shall be written in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant and shall, in the
case of an adverse benefit determination:

(i) set forth the specific reasons for the adverse benefit determination;

(ii) contain specific references to Plan provisions relative to the adverse benefit determination;

(iii) describe any material and information, if any, necessary for the claim for benefits to be perfected, and
an explanation of why such material or information is necessary; and

(iv) advise the claimant that any appeal of an adverse benefit determination must be made, in writing, to
the Plan Administrator within 60 days after receipt of such adverse benefit determination, and must set forth the facts upon
which the appeal is based.

(c) If the claimant fails to appeal the Plan Administrator’s adverse benefit determination, in writing, within 60
days after its receipt by the claimant (or within 60 days after a deemed denial of the claim), the Plan Administrator’s determination
shall become final and conclusive.

(d) If the claimant appeals the Plan Administrator’s adverse benefit determination in a timely fashion, the Plan
Administrator shall re-examine all issues relevant to the original denial of benefits. Any such claimant or his or her duly authorized
representative may review any pertinent documents and records, including documents and records that were relied upon in making
the benefit determination, documents submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the benefit determination (even if
such documents were not relied upon in making the benefit determination), and documents that demonstrate compliance, in making
the benefit determination, with the Plan’s required administrative processes and safeguards. In addition, the claimant or his duly
authorized representative may submit, in writing, any documents, records, comments or other information relating to such claim for
benefits. In the course of his review, the Plan Administrator shall take into account all comments, documents, records and other
information submitted by the claimant or his duly authorized representative relating to such claim, regardless of whether it was
submitted or considered as part of the initial benefit determination.
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(e) The Plan Administrator shall advise the claimant and such claimant’s representative, in writing, of its decision
within 60 days of receipt of the written appeal, unless special circumstances require an extension of such 60-day period for not more
than an additional 60 days. Where such extension is necessary, the claimant shall be given written notice of the delay before the
expiration of the initial 60-day period, which notice shall set forth the reasons for the delay and the date the Plan Administrator
expects to render its decision. In the event of an adverse benefit determination on appeal, the Plan Administrator shall advise the
claimant, in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant, of (i) the specific reasons for the adverse benefit determination,
and (ii) the specific Plan provisions on which the adverse benefit determination was based. The Plan Administrator’s written notice
will advise the claimant of his or her right to receive, upon request and free of charge, copies of all documents, records and other
information relevant to such claim.

(f) In the event of an adverse benefit determination after the Plan Administrator’s review, the claimant’s sole
remedy shall be to file an action in court.

The Plan’s claims procedures do not create any independent rights to Plan benefits. A current or former Participant who files
a claim for Plan benefits must satisfy all Plan requirements, including the requirements of Section 5(b), in order to be entitled to
benefits.

12. Time Period for Filing a Claim or a Lawsuit Against the Plan, the Company or Plan Fiduciaries; Restrictions
on Venue

(a) Any claim for Plan benefits must be filed in writing with the Plan Administrator within sixty (60) days after
the current or former Participant knew or should have known of his/her putative right to Plan benefits. However, in no event will any
claim be considered timely if it is filed more than one hundred eighty (180) days after the date a current or former Participant’s
employment with the Company is terminated. Requests or claims submitted more than sixty (60) days after a current or former
Participant knew or should have known of his/her potential right to Plan benefits, or one-hundred eighty (180) days after the date
his/her employment with the Company is terminated, are deemed waived by the claimant and considered time-barred.

(b) Any lawsuit against the Plan, the Company, the Plan Administrator, or any other Plan fiduciary, must be filed
no later than the six (6) month anniversary of the following, as applicable: (i)  the date the claim or appeal is denied by the Plan
Administrator, or (ii) the date the claimant knows, or should reasonably know, that the claim has been, or is treated as being, denied
(e.g., if the claim, or the appeal in the case of an adverse benefit determination, is not denied within the time limits described in
Section 11 above).

(c) Any action in connection with the Plan must be filed in the Federal District Court of New York.

13. Unfunded Obligation

All benefits payable under this Plan shall constitute an unfunded obligation of the Company. Payments shall be made, as due,
from the general funds of the Company. This Plan shall constitute
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solely an unsecured promise by the Company to pay severance benefits to Participants to the extent provided herein.

14. Inalienability of Benefits

No Participant shall have the power to transfer, assign, anticipate, mortgage or otherwise encumber any rights or any amounts
payable under this Plan; nor shall any such rights or amounts payable under this Plan be subject to seizure, attachment, execution,
garnishment or other legal or equitable process, or for the payment of any debts, judgments, alimony, or separate maintenance, or be
transferable by operation of law in the event of bankruptcy, insolvency, or otherwise. In the event a person who is receiving or is
entitled to receive benefits under the Plan attempts to assign, transfer or dispose of such right, or if an attempt is made to subject
such right to such process, such assignment, transfer or disposition shall be null and void.

15. Withholding

The Company shall have the right to withhold any taxes required to be withheld with respect to any benefits due under this
Plan.

16. Amendment or Termination

Except to the extent otherwise provided in Section 26, Resideo reserves the right to amend or terminate the Plan at any time
without prior notice to or the consent of any employee. No amendment or termination shall adversely affect the rights of any
Participant whose employment terminated prior to such amendment or termination. However, except as provided in Section 26, any
Participant whose employment continues after amendment of the Plan shall be governed by the terms of the Plan as so amended.
Any Participant whose employment continues after termination of the Plan shall have no right to a benefit under the Plan. Any
amendment or termination of the Plan must comply with all applicable legal requirements including, without limitation, compliance
with Code Section 409A, securities, tax or other laws, rules, regulations or regulatory interpretations thereof that apply to the Plan.

17. Plan Not a Contract of Employment

Nothing contained in this Plan shall give an employee the right to be retained in the employment of the Company. This Plan
is not a contract of employment between the Company and any employee.

18. Action by the Company

Unless expressly indicated to the contrary herein, any action required to be taken by an entity may be taken by action of its
governing body or by any appropriate officer or officers traditionally responsible for such determination or actions, or such other
individual or individuals as may be designated by such governing body, officer or employee.
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19. Governing Law

The Plan is an employee welfare benefit plan within the meaning of Section  3(1) of ERISA, and will be construed in
accordance with the provisions of ERISA and the laws of the State of New York.

20. Severability

If any provision of this Plan (other than Section  5(b)) shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality or
invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of this Plan, but this Plan shall be construed and enforced as if said illegal or invalid
provision had never been included herein. If Section 5(b) shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality or invalidity
shall nullify the remainder of this Plan with respect to the affected Participants.

21. Code Section 409A; Section 280G

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, if required by Code Section  409A and if a
Participant is a “Specified Employee” (as defined below), no benefits shall be paid under this Plan during the “Postponement
Period” (as defined below). If a Participant is a Specified Employee and payment of benefits is required to be delayed for the
Postponement Period under Code Section 409A, the accumulated amounts withheld on account of Code Section 409A shall be paid
in a lump sum payment within 30 days after the end of the Postponement Period and no interest or other adjustment shall be made
for the delayed payment. If the Participant dies during the Postponement Period prior to the payment of benefits, the amounts
withheld on account of Code Section 409A shall be paid to the Participant’s estate within sixty (60) days after the Participant’s death.

(b) This Plan is intended to meet the requirements of the “short-term deferral” exception, the “separation pay”
exception and other exceptions under Code Section 409A. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, if required by Code
Section 409A, payments may only be made under this Plan upon an event and in a manner permitted by Code Section 409A, to the
extent applicable. For purposes of Code Section 409A, the right to a series of payments under the Plan shall be treated as a right to a
series of separate payments. All reimbursements and in-kind benefits provided under the Plan shall be made or provided in
accordance with the requirements of Code Section 409A, including, where applicable, the requirement that (i) any reimbursement is
for expenses eligible for reimbursement during the period of time specified in the Plan; (ii)  the amount of expenses eligible for
reimbursement, or in-kind benefits provided, during a calendar year may not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-
kind benefits provided in any other calendar year; (iii) the reimbursement of an eligible expense will be made no later than the last
day of the calendar year following the year in which the expense is incurred; and (iv) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefit is
not subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit. In no event may a Participant designate the year of payment for any
amounts payable under the Plan.

(c) Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, any payments of Severance Benefits under this Plan
that (i) are, or may be, deferred compensation subject to Code Section 409A (“409A Severance Benefits”), and (ii) are subject to a
Release, where the period for
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execution and non-revocation of the Release spans more than one calendar year, any payment of 409A Severance Benefits that is
contingent on the execution of the Release shall not be paid until the second calendar year, or later if required by the applicable
terms of the Plan. In no event may a Participant, either directly or indirectly, designate the calendar year of payment of any 409A
Severance Benefits.

(d) For purposes of this Section 21, the following definitions apply:

(i) “Specified Employee” means a Participant who, at any time during the 12-month period ending on the
identification date, is a “specified employee” under Code Section 409A, as determined by the Vice President – Compensation
and Benefits (or his delegee), which determination of “specified employees,” including the number and identity of persons
considered “specified employees” and identification date, shall be made by the Vice President – Compensation and Benefits
(or his delegee) in accordance with the provisions of Code Sections 416(i) and 409A.

(ii) “Postponement Period” means, for a Specified Employee, the period of six months after the Specified
Employee’s Last Day of Active Employment (or such other period as may be required by Code Section 409A) during which
deferred compensation may not be paid to the Specified Employee under Code Section 409A.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, if any payment or distribution to a Participant pursuant
to this Plan or otherwise (a “Payment”) would (i) constitute a “parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code,
and the regulations and ruling promulgated thereunder, (“Code Section 280G”) and (ii) but for this sentence, be subject to the excise
tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then such Payment shall either be (A) delivered in full or (B) delivered
as to such lesser extent as would result in no portion of such Payment being subject to the Excise Tax, whichever of the foregoing
amounts, after taking into account the applicable federal, state and local income taxes and the Excise Tax, results in the receipt by the
Participant on an after-tax basis of the largest payment, notwithstanding that all or some portion of the Payment may be taxable
under Section 4999 of the Code. The accounting firm engaged by the Company for general audit purposes as of the date prior to the
effective date of the Change in Control, or such other person or entity as determined by the Company, shall perform the foregoing
calculations and the Company shall bear all expenses with respect to the determinations by such accounting firm required to be made
hereunder. Any determinations of the accounting firm made pursuant to this section shall be final, binding and conclusive upon all
parties. Any reduction in payments and/or benefits pursuant to the foregoing shall be made in accordance with Code Section 409A in
the following order: (1) Payments that do not constitute “nonqualified compensation” subject to Code Section 409A shall be reduced
first; and (2) all other Payments shall then be reduced as follows: (w) reduction of cash payments; (x) cancellation of accelerated
vesting of equity awards other than stock options, if any; (y) cancellation of accelerated vesting of stock options; and (z) reduction of
other benefits payable to the Participant.
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PART II
SPECIAL PROVISIONS THAT BECOME EFFECTIVE

ONLY UPON CHANGE IN CONTROL

22. Applicability

(a) The provisions of this Part II become effective upon a Change in Control and, in addition to the provisions of
Part I that are not superseded by provisions of this Part II, shall control (i) the determination of eligibility for, the amount of, and the
time of payment of benefits under the Plan to any Participant who is the subject of a Covered Termination that occurs within the
two  (2) year period following the Change in Control, and (ii)  the terms of payment for any Participant whose Severance Period
extends beyond the Change in Control.

(b) It is intended that this Part  II will assure that Participants will not be adversely affected by the unique
circumstances that may exist following a Change in Control. The provisions of this Part II will have no effect whatsoever prior to a
Change in Control.

23. Definitions

(a) “Annual Incentive Compensation” means, notwithstanding the provisions of Section  3(b), the product of
(i) Annual Base Salary, and (ii)  the greater of (A)  the Incentive Award Target Percentage for the most recent Determination Year
ended prior to the Change in Control, or (B)  the average of the Incentive Award Target Percentages applied in determining the
Participant’s Incentive Award in the last three Determination Years prior to the date of Covered Termination (or such lesser period as
the Participant may have been employed).

(b) “Cause” has the same meaning as under Part I; provided, however, in the case of a determination under Part II
of the Plan, Cause shall be determined by the New Plan Administrator.

(c) “Covered Termination” means, in addition to the circumstances described in Section 3(k), a severance of the
employment relationship at the initiative of a Participant for Good Reason.

(d) “Good Reason” means any one or more of the following:

(i) A material change in the Participant’s position, duties and/or responsibilities as they existed in the
period immediately preceding the Change in Control;

(ii) Any significant reduction in the Participant’s Base Salary or Annual Incentive Compensation;

(iii) Any significant reduction in the economic value of awards granted under any Company long-term
incentive plans in which the Participant participated prior to a Change in Control, or the successors thereto;

- 15 -



(iv) Any geographic relocation of the Participant’s position to a new location that is more than fifty (50)
miles from the location of the Participant’s position immediately prior to a Change in Control;

(v) Any action by the Company that, under applicable law, constitutes constructive discharge; or

(vi) The failure of any Resideo Employer that is a successor to the Company (whether direct or indirect, by
purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to expressly assume and agree to honor this Plan, if such assumption is legally
required to make this Plan enforceable against the successor.

For purposes of this Section 23(c), the term “significant reduction” shall mean a reduction or series of reductions with respect
to the same form of benefit or remuneration that are greater than 10%, or which do not affect substantially all persons covered by the
plan or program in question.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Good Reason shall not be deemed to have occurred unless the Participant provides written
notice to Resideo identifying the event or omission constituting the reason for a Good Reason termination within ninety (90) days
following the first occurrence of such event or omission. Within thirty  (30) days after such notice has been provided to Resideo,
Resideo shall have the opportunity, but shall have no obligation, to cure such event or conditions that give rise to a Good Reason
termination. If Resideo fails to cure the events or conditions giving rise to a Participant’s Good Reason termination by the end of the
thirty (30) day cure period, the Participant’s employment shall be terminated effective as of the expiration of such thirty (30) day
cure period unless the Participant has withdrawn such Good Reason termination notice.

(e) “Resideo Employer” means the Company and any other person, organization or entity that agrees in writing
to be bound by the terms of the Plan for a period of time that extends at least through the two-year period following a Change in
Control.

(f) “New Plan Administrator” shall mean such person or persons appointed pursuant to Section 25 to administer
the Plan upon the occurrence of a Change in Control.

24. Benefit Payments and Forfeitures

(a) Benefit Payments. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 6, benefits that are determined to be payable to a
Participant under Sections 5(a)(i) and 5(a)(ii) on or after a Change in Control shall be paid within thirty (30) days following the later
of the Change in Control or the Covered Termination, in a single payment equal to the sum of (i)  the total amount of the benefit
remaining payable under Section 5(a)(i), and (ii) the amount of the benefit payable under Section 5(a)(ii); provided, however, that
the single lump sum payment pursuant to this Section will only be paid if the Change in Control constitutes a “change in control
event” under Section 409A of the Code. Otherwise, the payment shall be paid (or continue to be paid, if in pay status) in the same
form and at the same times as provided under Section 5(a). The requirements of Section 5(b) shall have no application to benefits
payable after a Change in Control. If any benefit is paid later than the time provided in this Section 24(a), such late payment shall be
credited with interest for the
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period from the date payment should have been made to the date actually made at a rate equal to the average quoted rate for three-
month U.S. Treasury Bills for the week preceding the date of payment, as determined by the New Plan Administrator, plus six
percentage points.

(b) Forfeiture of Benefits. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8, a Participant receiving benefits or entitled
to receive benefits under the Plan shall cease to receive such benefits under the Plan and the right to receive any benefits in the future
under the Plan shall be forfeited, in the event the Participant, as determined by the New Plan Administrator, (i)  is convicted of a
felony committed against a Resideo Employer, its property or business, (ii)  commits any fraud or misappropriates property,
proprietary information, intellectual property or trade secrets of a Resideo Employer for personal gain or for the benefit of another
party, or (iii) violates the terms of any restrictive covenant agreement with Resideo.

(c) Benefits Conditioned on Release. Section 5(b) is hereby incorporated by reference.

25. Administration

(a) New Plan Administrator. On or before a Change in Control, the Company shall appoint a person independent
of the Company to be the New Plan Administrator upon the occurrence of a Change in Control and the Plan Administrator shall
provide to the New Plan Administrator such information with respect to each Participant in the Plan as shall be necessary to enable
the New Plan Administrator to determine the amount of is the Severance Benefits that are then, or may thereafter become, payable to
such Participants. Upon a Change in Control, the New Plan Administrator shall have the authority vested in the Plan Administrator
under Section 10(b), and claims for benefits shall be subject to the claims and appeals procedures outlined in Section 11.

(b) Attorneys Fees and Costs. If a Participant is paid or is determined to be entitled to receive benefits by a court
of competent jurisdiction, the Resideo Employer shall immediately pay or reimburse the affected Participant for the full amount of
any attorneys’ fees and other expenses the affected Participant incurred in pursuing his or her claim for benefits, including claims
incurred during the claims and appeals portion of the process. The payment or reimbursement shall include the reasonable hourly
rates charged by the Participant’s attorneys, any and all other expenses related to the action incurred by or on behalf of the affected
Participant, the costs and expenses of any experts utilized to prepare the claim, and any court costs assessed against the affected
Participant.

(c) Declaratory Judgment. Participants may bring a claim under this Section 25 to assert the existence of Good
Reason conditions that would enable a Participant to trigger his own termination under this Part  II without resigning his or her
position with the Resideo Employer.

26. Amendment or Termination

This Plan may not be amended or terminated after a Change in Control; provided, however, the Plan may be amended if the
purpose of the amendment is to increase benefits hereunder or if the purpose of the amendment is to comply with Section 409A of
the Code.
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27. No Waiver

No waiver by a Participant at any time of any breach by a Resideo Employer of, or of any lack of compliance with, any
condition or provision of this Plan to be performed by the Resideo Employer shall be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar
provisions or conditions at the same or at any prior or subsequent time. In no event shall the failure by a Participant to assert any
right under the Plan (including, but not limited to, failure to assert the existence of Good Reason conditions that would enable a
Participant to trigger his own termination under this Part II) be deemed a waiver of such right or any other right provided under the
Plan, it being intended that a Participant who has perfected a right under the Plan (including, but not limited to, a Participant’s right
to trigger his own Good Reason termination under this Part II) shall be entitled to assert that right in accordance with the terms of the
Plan unless the Participant affirmatively elects, in writing, to waive such right.

28. Company Policies

All benefits granted under the Plan shall be subject to any applicable clawback or recoupment policies, share trading policies
and other policies that may be implemented by the Board of Directors from time to time, including such policies set forth in the
Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, as such policies may be amended from time to time, subject to and consistent with
Section 409A of the Code.
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PART III
SPECIAL PROVISIONS THAT BECOME EFFECTIVE

ONLY UPON A DIVESTITURE
THAT DOES NOT CONSTITUE A CHANGE IN CONTROL

29. Applicability

(a) The provisions of this Part III apply to Participants effective as of July 31, 2025, and such benefits hereunder
shall apply upon the consummation of a Divestiture prior to December 31, 2027 (the “Term”) and, in addition to the provisions of
Part I that are not superseded by provisions of this Part III, shall control the determination of eligibility for, the amount of, and the
time of payment of benefits under the Plan to any Participant who is the subject of a Covered Termination that occurs within the
eighteen (18) month period following a Divestiture. For avoidance of doubt, all terms used in this Part III shall have the meanings
set forth in Part II of the Plan to the extent defined in Part II and Part I of the Plan otherwise.

(b) It is intended that this Part  III will assure that Participants will not be adversely affected by the unique
circumstances that may exist following a Divestiture. The provisions of this Part  III will have no effect whatsoever prior to a
Divestiture, in the event of a Change in Control, or following the Term if no Divestiture has occurred prior to the end of the Term.

30. Definitions

(a)  “Divestiture” means the sale, disposition, transfer, separation, contribution, distribution or spin-off (or
similar transaction) of a controlling interest in, or of substantially all of the assets of, the ADI Global Distribution Business or the
Products & Solutions Business, in any case, the consummation of which occurs prior to the end of the Term; provided, that, a
transaction shall not constitute a Divestiture if such transaction also constitutes a Change in Control.

(b)  “Divestiture Equity Acceleration Benefits” means with respect to any award under the Stock Incentive Plan
held by a Participant as of the date of such Participant’s Covered Termination that is unvested and (i)  subject only to time-based
vesting conditions, the full accelerated vesting of such awards and (ii) subject to any performance-based vesting conditions, the full
accelerated vesting of such awards, based on target performance.

(c) “Good Reason” has the meaning set forth in Section  23(d); provided that, for purposes of determining
whether a Covered Termination has occurred under this Part III, clause (iv) of Section 23(d) shall not apply.

(d) “Stock Incentive Plan” means the Amended and Restated 2018 Stock Incentive Plan of Resideo
Technologies, Inc. and its Affiliates, as may be amended from time to time.

(e) “Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 29(a); provided, that, the Term may not be shortened; provided
further that, so long as a Divestiture occurs during the Term, this
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Part III shall continue in effect for as long as is required to provide eligibility for and payment or provision of benefits in accordance
with the provisions hereof.

(f) The definitions set forth in Part II, as used in this Part III, shall be construed by replacing each reference to
“Change in Control” with “Divestiture” and shall otherwise be construed to apply to the provisions in this Part III, mutatis mutandis.

31. Amount and Payment of Benefits

(a) Eligibility for Benefits. Notwithstanding any provision in the Plan to the contrary, in the event that a
Participant experiences a Covered Termination at any time prior to the end of the Term, or within the eighteen (18) month period
following a Divestiture, such Participant shall be entitled to (i) the Divestiture Equity Acceleration Benefits and (ii) the benefits that
are determined to be payable under Section  5(a); provided, that, solely for purposes of this Section  31(a), each reference in
Section 5(a) to “Change in Control” shall be deemed to mean a Divestiture.

(b) Form and Timing of Benefit Payments. The form and timing of any benefits determined in accordance with
Section 31(a) shall be paid to such Participant in accordance with Section 6.

(c) Forfeiture of Benefits. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8, a Participant receiving benefits or entitled
to receive benefits under the Plan shall cease to receive such benefits under the Plan and the right to receive any benefits in the future
under the Plan shall be forfeited, in the event the Participant, as determined by the New Plan Administrator, (i)  is convicted of a
felony committed against a Resideo Employer, its property or business, (ii)  commits any fraud or misappropriates property,
proprietary information, intellectual property or trade secrets of a Resideo Employer for personal gain or for the benefit of another
party, or (iii) violates the terms of any restrictive covenant agreement with Resideo.

(d) Benefits Conditioned on Release. Section 5(b) is hereby incorporated by reference.

32. Administration

(a) New Plan Administrator. On or before the consummation of a Divestiture, the Board shall appoint one or more
officer of the divested business to be the New Plan Administrator upon the occurrence of a Divestiture and the Plan Administrator or
the Committee shall provide to the New Plan Administrator such information with respect to each Participant in the Plan as shall be
necessary to enable the New Plan Administrator to determine the amount of the Severance Benefits that are then, or may thereafter
become, payable to such Participants. The person or persons serving as the New Plan Administrator may not be removed from such
capacity at any time during the Term and for as long as benefits (or eligibility for benefits) are being provided hereunder. Should any
such person experience a termination of employment or service with the Resideo Employer for any reason during the Term or while
benefits (or eligibility for benefits) are being provided hereunder, such person shall continue to serve in the capacity as the New Plan
Administrator for the remainder
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of the Term or as long as benefits (or eligibility for benefits) are being provided hereunder. Upon a Divestiture, the New Plan
Administrator shall have the authority vested in the Plan Administrator under Section 10(b), and claims for benefits shall be subject
to the claims and appeals procedures outlined in Section 11. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the determination of whether a
particular transaction constitutes a Divestiture shall be made by the Committee, and, solely with respect to such determinations, the
Company shall, to the extent permitted by law, indemnify the New Plan Administrator from all claims for liability, loss, or damage
(including payment of expenses in connection with defense against such claims) arising from or related to such determinations.

(b) Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. If a Participant is paid or is determined to be entitled to receive benefits by a court
of competent jurisdiction, the Resideo Employer shall immediately pay or reimburse the affected Participant for the full amount of
any attorneys’ fees and other expenses the affected Participant incurred in pursuing his or her claim for benefits, including claims
incurred during the claims and appeals portion of the process. The payment or reimbursement shall include the reasonable hourly
rates charged by the Participant’s attorneys, any and all other expenses related to the action incurred by or on behalf of the affected
Participant, the costs and expenses of any experts utilized to prepare the claim, and any court costs assessed against the affected
Participant.

(c) Declaratory Judgment. Participants may bring a claim under this Section 32 to assert the existence of Good
Reason conditions that would enable a Participant to trigger his own termination under this Part  III without resigning his or her
position with the Resideo Employer.

33. Amendment or Termination

This Part III may not be amended, terminated or discontinued during the Term; provided, however, that this Part III may be
amended if the purpose of the amendment is to increase benefits hereunder, comply with Section 409A of the Code or conform the
administrative provisions hereof to applicable law, as determined by counsel to be so required. If this Part III is amended, terminated
or discontinued within two  (2) months prior to a Divestiture or prior to the end of the Term, it shall continue to be effective as
written prior to such amendment, termination or discontinuation for the Participants who were participating at the time of such
amendment, termination or discontinuation (subject to the immediately following sentence). This Part  III shall automatically
terminate at the end of the Term if no Divestiture has occurred; provided, however, that if a Divestiture occurs during the Term, then
this Part  III shall continue in effect for as long as is required to provide eligibility for and payment or provision of benefits in
accordance with the provisions hereof.

34. Miscellaneous

Sections 27 and 28 in Part II of the Plan are hereby incorporated by reference, mutatis mutandis.
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Exhibit 10.3

AMENDED AND RESTATED 2018 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF RESIDEO TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND
ITS AFFILIATES

AMENDMENT TO STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT

This amendment (the “Amendment”) to the STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT entered into as of the 28th day of
May, 2020 (the “Option Award Agreement”) between Resideo Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) and Jay Geldmacher
(“Participant”) is effective July 31, 2025. Unless otherwise defined herein, the capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall
have the definitions set forth in the Option Award Agreement or Plan.

The Company, for good and valuable consideration, amends the Option Award Agreement as follows:

1. The Option Award Agreement is hereby amended to add the following row to the table in Section 7:

Event Vesting Exercise Period for Vested Awards
Termination of Service due to
retirement, as defined in the letter
agreement between Participant and
the Company regarding Mr.
Geldmacher’s retirement executed as
of November 6, 2024 (the
“Retirement Letter”)

Fully vested Expires on the earlier of (i) the
Expiration Date set forth in Section
4, or (ii) one year following the date
of Participant’s Termination of
Service pursuant to the terms of the
Retirement Letter.

2. Except as otherwise specified in this Amendment, all terms and conditions of the Option Award Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has executed this Amendment as of the date set forth above.

RESIDEO TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Steve Kelly

Date: August 1, 2025



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jay Geldmacher, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Resideo Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 5, 2025 By: /s/ Jay Geldmacher
Jay Geldmacher
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael Carlet, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Resideo Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 5, 2025 By: /s/ Michael Carlet
Michael Carlet
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Resideo Technologies, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 28, 2025 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Jay Geldmacher, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 5, 2025 By: /s/ Jay Geldmacher
Jay Geldmacher

  President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Resideo Technologies, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 28, 2025 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Michael Carlet, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 5, 2025 By: /s/ Michael Carlet
Michael Carlet
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer


